

10/05/2022 2061-01 22-CON-01-2061 42238

MASTER AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

ADENA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND THE

ADENA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
ARTICLE I F	PROFESSIONAL NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES	1
1.01	Recognition	1
1.02	Negotiation Procedures	1
1.03	Impasse	3
1.04	Complete Agreement	3
1.05	No Strike Clause	4
ARTICLE II	ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	4
ARTICLE III	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	5
3.01	Grievance Policy	
3.02	Purposes and Objectives	
3.03	Grievance Defined	
3.04	General Provisions	
3.05	Procedure	7
ARTICLE IV	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	9
4.01	Sick Leave Policy	
4.02	Personal Leave	
4.03	Sabbatical Leave	
4.04	Professional Meetings	
4.05	Association Leave	
4.06	Family and Medical Leave	
4.07	Assault Leave	
4.08	Use of Leave	10
ARTICLE V	REDUCTION IN FORCE	17
5.01	Reduction in Force	
5.02	Procedure for Reduction in Staff	
5.03	Seniority	19
ARTICLE VI	EVALUATION	20
6.02	Teacher Evaluation	
6.03	Teacher Evaluation Committee	21
ARTICLE VI	I EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS	21
7.01	Length of Teacher Day	21
7.02	Vacancy and Transfer	
7.03	Individual Contracts and Contract Sequence	
7.04	Personnel File	
7.05	Community Complaint Procedure	
7.06	Planning and Preparation Time	
7.07	Just Cause	
7.08	Teacher Certification	28

	7.09	5 of 8 Provision	
	7.10	Class Size	28
ARTIC	CLE VII	I PAYROLL PRACTICES	
	8.01	Payroll Deductions	
	8.02	Salary Payment	
	8.03	Paycheck Errors	
	8.04	Fair Share Fee Provision	3(
ARTIC	CLE IX	SALARIES	31
	9.01	Teachers' Salary Schedule	
		Salary Schedule Index	
	9.02	Extra Duty Salary Schedule	32
۸ D.T.(TOINOE DENIEUTO	00
ARTIC		FRINGE BENEFITSSeverance Pay	
		Substitute Pay for Regular Teachers	
	10.02	Insurance	37
	10.00		٠.
ARTIC	CLE XI	BOARD PAID MILEAGE	43
۸ DTI		A CADEMIC CTIDEND	4
ARTIC	LE XII	ACADEMIC STIPEND	44
ARTIC	CLE XII	I STRS PICK-UP	44
ARTIC	CLE XIV	V BOARD POLICY HANDBOOK	45
ARTIC	CLE XV	NON-RENEWAL OF CONTRACT	46
<i>,</i> (() ()		Clarification of Terms	
		Non-renewal of a Limited Contract (At least 3 Continuous Years of	
		Teaching)	46
	15.03	Non-renewal of a Limited Contract (Less Than 3 Continuous Years	
		of Teaching)	47
۸ DTI		'I GENERAL AGREEMENT PROVISIONS	47
AKII		I GENERAL AGREEMENT PROVISIONS	47
ARTIC	CLE XV	'II SCHOOL CALENDAR	47
	17.02	Length of Teacher Contract Year	47
	17.03	Calamity Days	48
۸ DTI		III MANAGEMENT RIGHTS (BOARD OF EDUCATION RIGHTS)	<i>1</i> C
AKII		TII MANAGEMENT RIGHTS (BOARD OF EDUCATION RIGHTS)	40
ARTIC	CLE XIX	X PRINTING OF MASTER CONTRACT	48
ARTIC	CLE XX	PARENT-TEACHER CONFERENCES	48
ARTIC	CIFXX	I POLICY ON DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE	49

ARTICLE XXII LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (LPDC)	49
ARTICLE XXIII EMPLOYMENT OF RETIRED TEACHERS	50
23.02 Salary23.03 Contract of Employment	
23.04 Supplemental Contracts	
23.05 Leaves of Absence	
23.06 Reduction in Force/Seniority	
23.07 Evaluation Procedures	
23.08 Severance Pay	
23.09 Insurance	
23.10 Academic Stipend	52
23.11 Waiver/Supersede Contrary Provisions	52
ARTICLE XXIV STUDENTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS	52
ARTICLE XXV PROFESSIONAL SUPPORT	52
25.01 General Provisions	52
25.02 Resident Educator Program Development and Screening	
Committee	52
25.03 Resident Educator Regulations	
25.04 Responsibilities	
25.05 Protections	
25.06 Attendance at Training Sessions	54
ARTICLE XXVI TERM OF AGREEMENT	55
APPENDIX A – GRIEVANCE FORM	56
APPENDIX B – CERTIFICATION OF SICK LEAVE ABSENCE FORM	57
APPENDIX C – SICK LEAVE TRANSFER FORM	58
APPENDIX D – SALARY SCHEDULE	59
APPENDIX E – SCHEDULE OF DENTAL BENEFITS	61

ARTICLE I PROFESSIONAL NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES

1.01 Recognition

The Adena Local Board of Education, hereinafter the "Board," recognizes the Adena Education Association, affiliated with the Ohio Education Association and the National Education Association, hereinafter the "Association" as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the "bargaining unit" for the duration of the Agreement. The bargaining unit is composed of all certified teachers, whether under contract or on leave, employed by the Board.

The unit includes all existing personnel assigned to newly created certified teaching positions excluding the Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, all administrative directors, principals, assistant principals, supervisors, administrative coordinators, and other persons engaged fifty percent of the time or more in the direct administration and supervision of professional personnel.

The term "teacher" when used hereinafter in the Agreement shall refer to all employees in the bargaining unit.

The Board agrees not to negotiate with or recognize any teachers' organization other than the Association for the duration of this Agreement.

1.02 Negotiation Procedures

- A. Either the Association or the Board may initiate negotiations by submitting a notice to negotiate no sooner than 120 calendar days but no later than 60 calendar days prior to the expiration of the contract. If notice is from the Association, it shall be served on the Superintendent. If notice is from the Board, it shall be served on the Association President.
- B. A mutually convenient meeting shall be held no later than twenty (20) days after the service of the original notice unless both parties agree to a later date. All meetings shall be in closed session.
- C. Both the Board and the Association shall submit all of their proposals in writing at no later than the first negotiations session. No additional proposals may be submitted past the deadlines listed above except by mutual agreement of the parties.
- D. Negotiation Teams, Observers The designated representatives chosen by the Board and the Association shall meet to negotiate in good faith. There shall be four representatives chosen by the Board. There shall be four representatives chosen by the Association. Neither party will attempt to exert any control over the other's selection of its representatives. In addition to the teams, each team shall be authorized to have a legal counsel present.

- E. Negotiation Meetings – The representatives of the Board shall meet at reasonable times with representatives of the Association for the purpose of affecting a free exchange of facts, opinions, and proposals in the sincere effort to reach mutual understanding and agreements on all appropriate matters submitted for negotiations. All parties are obliged to deal openly and fairly with each other on all matters and to conduct such negotiations in good faith, but such obligation does not compel either party to agree to a proposal or require the making of a concession. Good faith involves coming to the table with the intention of negotiating, not of dogmatically pursuing preconceived stands. Good faith requires that the Association and the Board be willing to react to each other's proposals. If a proposal is unacceptable to one of the parties, the party is obligated to give its reasons. Good faith requires both parties to recognize negotiations as a shared process. Such meetings shall not be conducted during the regular school day. Before adjournment the teams will agree upon a time and place for the next subsequent meeting, unless impasse has been reached.
- F. Caucus Upon the request of either party, the negotiation meeting shall be recessed to permit the parties to caucus. A caucus shall be for a period of not more than thirty (30) minutes unless otherwise mutually agreed to.
- G. Exchange of Information The Board shall make available to the Association such information as is pertinent to the issue under negotiations provided, however, that nothing herein shall require the Board to make available to the Association any confidential information or reports expressly compiled for the use of the Board or its negotiators. The Association shall do likewise. The Treasurer shall present to the President of the Association a copy of each of the following records:
 - The most recent Official Amended Certificate of Estimated Resources
 - A training and experience grid for bargaining unit employees, showing where on the salary schedules bargaining unit members are located.
 - Other items requested in writing by the Association President and/or the OEA/NEA UniServ Consultant or other OEA/NEA Consultant
- H. Agreement If consensus is reached on those matters being negotiated, the understanding of the parties shall be reduced to writing and submitted to the membership of the Adena Education Association for ratification. If ratified, the written memorandum of understanding between the parties shall then be submitted to the Board for its consideration. If approved by an affirmative vote of a majority of the full Board, the agreement shall be

signed by both parties and shall become a part of the official minutes of the Board.

1.03 Impasse

A. Mediation

- 1. Forty-five (45) days prior to the expiration of the current agreement, or some other mutually agreed upon date, if the parties have items as yet unresolved, the parties shall jointly request the services of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The assigned mediator shall have the authority to call meetings for the purpose of promoting an agreement between the parties.
- 2. Mediation will continue through the expiration of the contract, or thereafter upon mutual agreement of the parties. Following mediation in accordance with these provisions, the parties may exercise their rights under Ohio Revised Code 4117. Either party may distribute status-reports concerning negotiations at any point during the process of negotiations and/or mediation.
- B. Costs Any costs and expenses which may be incurred in securing and using the services of the mediator as described above, shall be shared equally by the parties.

1.04 Complete Agreement

The Board and the Association acknowledge that during negotiations which preceded this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining/negotiations and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.

Therefore, for the life of this Agreement, the Board and the Association each agree that the other shall not be obligated to negotiate collectively with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated and signed this Agreement. This article shall not operate to preclude negotiations over a successor agreement.

This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Board and the Association and unless specifically and expressly set forth in the express written provisions of this Agreement, all rules, regulations, benefits and practices previously and presently in effect may be modified or discontinued at the sole discretion of the Board.

1.05 No Strike Clause

The Association and any and all of its members shall not cause, engage in, or sanction any strike during the term of this Agreement.

A "strike" as used herein shall be defined in accordance with Ohio Revised Code Section 4117.01, Section H.

ARTICLE II ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- 2.01 The Association shall have the right to use school buildings for membership meetings, provided the building principal is notified, except in the case of urgent necessity, no less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the time and place of such meetings, and the use does not interfere with the previously scheduled use of the building. The Association shall keep the school buildings in good order and in the condition as the same now are, with reasonable use and natural wear and tear expected.
- 2.02 Upon reasonable request of the Association, the Association shall have the right to use school equipment, such as typewriters, copying machines, duplicating equipment, calculating machines and audio-visual equipment, provided such use is made on school property and does not interfere with the school use of such equipment. Borrowed equipment must be returned in the same condition as when borrowed taking into consideration normal wear of such equipment. The Association shall pay for all consumable supplies.
- 2.03 The Association shall have the right to the use of the school mail service to the extent such use does not interfere with the school use of such service. No device, code or other insignia may be affixed to said mailbox identifying either members or non-members of the Association. If such a device, code or other insignia is so affixed, the administration shall have the right to remove it.
- 2.04 The Association shall have the non-exclusive use of any bulletin board presently located in a teachers' lounge or other non-public area as designated by the principal, provided that any material posted shall be designated as Association material.
- 2.05 The Association may use telephones as designated by the principal in any building to carry out Association business. Any fees or toll call charges shall be reimbursed to the Board by the Association. These calls are not to be made at times that interfere with duties assigned by the Board and Administration.
- 2.06 Representatives of the Association shall be permitted to discuss organizational matters with members of the bargaining unit as long as such discussion does not interfere with duties assigned by the Board and the Administration. Representatives of the Association who are not employees of the Board shall

first report to the principal's office and otherwise comply with all conditions required of other visitors.

2.07 The Association shall:

- A. Be provided with copies of all Board agendas, minutes and other written public information. Such information shall be sent to the Association President electronically at the same time it is sent to Board members.
- B. Be placed on the agenda of Board meetings, when requested, for the purpose of communications with the Board.
- C. Be given each September the name, address and phone number of each member of the bargaining unit and within one (1) week after official Board action employing new teachers, the names and addresses of all such new teachers.

ARTICLE III GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

3.01 Grievance Policy

The Board and the Association recognize that in the interest of effective personnel management, a procedure is necessary whereby teachers can be assured of a prompt, impartial, and fair hearing on their grievances. Such procedures shall be available to all teachers within the bargaining unit and no reprisals of any kind shall be taken against any teacher initiating or participating in the grievance procedure by reason of such initiation or participation.

3.02 Purposes and Objectives

The primary purpose of this procedure shall be to obtain at the lowest administrative level and in the shortest period of time, equitable solutions to grievances, which may arise from time to time. Both the Board and the Association agree that grievance proceedings shall be handled in a confidential manner.

3.03 Grievance Defined

- A. A grievance shall mean an alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of this written contract.
- B. A grievant shall mean an employee or group of employees within the bargaining unit alleging that some violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of the aforementioned agreement has actually occurred. A grievance alleged to be a "group" grievance shall have arisen out of identical circumstances affecting each member of said group. The Association may file a grievance on its own behalf for an alleged violation,

misinterpretation or misapplication of any right or privilege granted to the Association or to any bargaining unit member by the terms of this contract. A grievance filed by the Association for an alleged violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of a right or privilege granted to a bargaining unit member shall, in addition to the other requirements for filing grievances, state the name of the bargaining unit member whose rights or privileges have allegedly been violated, misinterpreted or misapplied, and such bargaining unit member must attend all grievance conferences related to that grievance. If either of those two requirements is not complied with, the grievance shall be deemed to have been waived.

3.04 General Provisions

- A. An individual grievance shall be initiated by the person so aggrieved.
- B. An alleged violation should be first discussed informally with the appropriate administrator prior to initiation of the grievance procedure.
- C. A grievance shall be reduced to writing on a standard form supplied by the Board and shall contain a concise statement of the facts upon which the grievance is based, a reference to the specific provision of the Master Agreement allegedly violated, misinterpreted or misapplied, the date of the alleged violation, and the relief sought. The grievance form utilized will be the form specified in Appendix "A".
- D. The Association shall be available to assist any teacher in preparing the proper and complete information necessary to expedite the procedure.
- E. Counsel of choice may be used by all or any parties involved in the grievance procedure at all levels. If counsel for the teacher is an organizational counsel, it shall be only the official representatives of the Association.
- F. Time limits given shall be considered as maximum, unless otherwise extended by mutual written agreement by the parties involved.
- G. A grievance may be initiated at Level II when it has been determined by the building principal that the subject is not within his or her realm of responsibility or control.
- H. Nothing contained in this procedure shall be construed as limiting the individual rights of a teacher, having a complaint or problem, to discuss the matter informally with members of the administration through normal channels of communications.
- Nothing contained in this procedure shall be construed as limiting the rights of a teacher from using other professional or legal rights in resolving a complaint or problem.

- J. Election of remedies Upon the filing of a complaint by the grievant or on the grievant's behalf, in any court of competent jurisdiction demanding relief upon a matter which is the subject of a pending grievance, such filing shall be deemed a waiver of the rights granted herein and the grievance shall be deemed dismissed.
- K. Except as hereinafter provided, a "day" shall mean any day in which bargaining unit members are working and during summer recess any weekday excluding holidays when Board of Education offices are not open. Failure to comply with the time limits by the grievant shall result in a waiver of the rights granted under this Article. Failure of the administration to comply with the time limits shall advance the grievant to the next level of this procedure.
- L. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without prejudice.
- M. All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants.
- N. In the course of investigation of any grievance, those persons involved with the investigation of said grievance will report to the principal of the building being visited immediately upon arrival.
- O. There shall be no interruption of classroom activities in any phase of the grievance procedure, unless otherwise agreed by the parties.
- P. There shall be no involvement of students in any phase of the grievance procedure.
- Q. The Association shall be notified in writing of all grievance conferences and shall have the opportunity to attend any grievance conference.
- R. The grievant has the right to Association representation at all meetings and hearings involving the grievance.
- S. The Association shall have the exclusive right to determine whether to proceed to the arbitration step of the procedure.
- T. The Association shall receive copies of all communications in the processing of grievances.

3.05 Procedure

A. Level I – Administration – A copy of a written grievance shall be submitted to the aggrieved's immediate administrator within thirty (30) days of the time the aggrieved became aware or should have been aware upon the

exercise of reasonable diligence of the alleged violation or such shall be deemed to have been waived and no longer to exist.

A meeting shall be mutually agreed upon between the aggrieved and the administrator within four (4) days of the filing of the grievance. No more than four (4) people may provide information related to the grievance at any one meeting. Discussion at the meeting shall be confined to the issues as stated in the grievance and the relief sought.

Within five (5) days of the meeting, the administration shall provide the aggrieved with a written response stating his position and/or suggestion for resolution of the grievance.

B. Level II – Superintendent – If the aggrieved is not satisfied with the suggestion for resolution received in Level I, he may within five days of receipt of such written response, submit his written grievance to the Superintendent and request a meeting to discuss the grievance.

The meeting shall be within ten (10) days of the request.

The meeting shall be conducted in a manner as stated in Level I.

Within five (5) days of the meeting, the Superintendent shall provide the aggrieved with a written response stating his position and/or suggestion for resolution of the grievance.

C. Level III – Arbitration – If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition at Level II, he/she may demand, upon written approval of the Association, that the issue be submitted to arbitration. Such demand shall be made within ten (10) days after receipt of the written notice of the action taken by the Superintendent. The Arbitrator shall be selected through the Voluntary Rules of the American Arbitration Association, or through some other method or other mediation service provider agreed upon by the Superintendent and the Association.

The Arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from the terms of the Agreement, or to make any award which is inconsistent with the terms of the Agreement or contrary to law.

The arbitrator shall make his report and recommendations to the grievant, the Superintendent, and the President of the Association. His decision shall be binding upon the parties. The said report shall be within thirty (30) days of request for arbitration. Cost of the Arbitrator's services shall be shared equally by the Board and the grievant.

ARTICLE IV LEAVES OF ABSENCE

4.01 Sick Leave Policy

4.011 Each full-time teacher shall accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1-1/4 days each month of the year. Part-time teachers will accumulate sick leave on a prorata basis based on their employment contract issued by the Board. Teachers are eligible for an accumulation of 250 sick leave days.

4.012 Provisions of Sick Leave

- A. Sick leave may be used for personal illness of an employee, pregnancyrelated disability, injury, and exposure to contagious disease which could be communicated to others.
- B. Sick leave may be used for absence due to illness, pregnancy-related disability, injury, quarantine or death in the employee's immediate family.
- C. Up to one (1) day of sick leave may be used for the death of a close friend or other relative not considered immediate family, as defined in paragraph D, to enable the staff member to attend a funeral service. In this situation, up to an additional two (2) consecutive days of sick leave may be used for travel if travel exceeds 250 miles one-way.
- D. Members of the immediate family shall be defined as follows: grandparents, spouse, children, father, mother, brother, sister, in-laws, or other persons who have assumed a similar position to the teacher's, regardless of residence.
- 4.013 The above sick leave provisions set forth herewith shall also be subject to the following:
 - A. Teachers who transfer from another school district in Ohio or other public agency shall be credited with unused sick leave, not to exceed the total days permitted to be accumulated in paragraph 4.011 above, as long as the transfer takes place within ten (10) years of having left the previous school district/other public agency.
 - B. Employees must provide an official statement from the last place of employment stating the number of days of unused sick leave.
 - C. Full salary will be paid to each employee while on sick leave, subject to Section 4.013(H), not to exceed actual accumulated sick leave. Any paid days beyond actual accumulation shall be paid only as authorized by the express policy of the Board.
 - D. The Board will assume the financial responsibility for the substitute.

9816911v9

- E. Severance of a contract by an employee or by the Board shall nullify the pay for accumulated sick leave; however, sick leave may be transferred from one school district to another in the State of Ohio.
- F. Sick leave accumulated from out of state or with a federal agency is not transferable to public schools in Ohio.
- G. Sick leave may be used in full, half-day, or quarter-day increments. A "quarter-day" is two (2) hours or less.
- H. Employees must provide written verification from a medical professional (or obituaries in case of a death) for any sick leave days in excess of four (4) or more total sick leave days in each semester. Failure to provide such documentation results in further sick leave days being paid at seventy percent (70%) of the employee's regular daily rate of pay.

4.014 Holidays in Relation to Sick Leave

When holidays and other days not in session approved by the Board are included in the period of absence due to illness, such days shall not be charged against the accumulated sick leave.

4.015 Advancement of Sick Leave

All new full-time employees who have no previous sick leave credit shall be credited with five (5) days of sick leave on the first day of the first month of employment. All other full-time employees who have not accumulated a total of five (5) days shall, on the first day of the first month of service of that year be credited with a sufficient number of sick leave days to bring the total number of days of sick leave for each employee to five (5) days unless the employee is on an unpaid leave of absence.

The days of sick leave credited to any employee at the beginning of the term of service are in lieu of the 1½ days of sick leave accrued for each month of service, and no additional credit for sick leave will be granted to any employee until such employee has earned an amount of sick leave credit at the rate of 1½ days for each completed month of service, in excess of the number of days sick leave credited at the beginning of such term of service.

4.016 Required Written Notice of Sick Leave

The Board shall require the use of an electronic form. In the event the electronic form is not accessible, the teacher shall furnish a written, signed statement on the form found in Appendix B to justify the use of sick leave. If medical attention is required, the employee's statement shall list the name and address of the attending physician and the dates on which the physician was consulted.

4.017 Penalty for Misuse of Sick Leave

Falsification of a statement is grounds for suspension or termination of employment (O.R.C. 3319.16), in addition to the loss of wages for those days in which the sick leave provisions are misused.

4.018 Statement of Accumulated Sick Leave Days

It shall be the policy of the Board to notify all employees, in writing, of the number of accumulated sick leave days credited to each employee on or before the last day of September. This written notice will include all days of sick leave accumulated to July 1.

4.019 Sick Leave Transfer

- A. A bargaining unit member may initiate a one-time transfer per year of sick leave to a named specific unit member who is within (5) days of exhausting his/her sick leave. The transferred days must be used in the school year that the transfer is made. Bargaining unit members wishing to assist may transfer no more than ten (10) days in any school year. Sick leave can only be transferred for the catastrophic illness or injury of a member or to care for a spouse or dependent children who are suffering from a catastrophic illness or injury, or for maternal leave after the birth of a child of a member.
- B. The sick leave transfer must be approved by the Board after a written request from the Association. The request must detail the reasons for the transfer. The sick leave transfer is irrevocable and shall cause the contributing member to have his/her sick leave reduced accordingly. The contributing bargaining unit member must fill in the approved form and return it to the Treasurer's Office. (Appendix C)
- C. Transfer does not affect the incentives of the bargaining unit members making donations.

4.020 Attendance Incentive

Bargaining unit members shall receive an attendance incentive bonus on the following basis:

Each semester: Absent 0 days = \$250 Absent 1 day or less = \$200

Payment shall be made twice a year within thirty (30) days of the end of the semester.

Bargaining unit members shall be paid the Attendance Incentive as eligible and any unused personal leave shall be rolled over into sick days equal to the unused personal days.

4.02 Personal Leave

- A. Each teacher shall be granted annually four (4) days of personal leave at the regular rate of compensation. This personal leave may be taken by a teacher without clarifying to the administration the reason for the request. Except in cases of urgent necessity the request for such leave will be filed on the appropriate form with the Superintendent, and a copy provided to the appropriate building principal, at least 72 hours prior to the taking of any personal leave.
- B. Except as provided in Section D below, personal leave shall not be available:
 - 1. The first five (5) and last ten (10) student days of the school year;
 - 2. The days of parent/teacher conferences and days on which there will be teacher in-service;
 - 3. No more than three (3) teachers from each of the following groups (Pre-K-4), (5-8), (9-12) shall be permitted to take personal leave at the same time unless special permission is sought and granted by the Superintendent. Personal leave will be recognized on a first-come-first-served basis; and
 - 4. Personal leave may be used by up to three (3) employees, on a first-come first-served basis, who produce evidence to the Superintendent of pre-arranged travel plans that conflict with make-up days. To qualify, the travel plans must have been made prior to January 1. Because of the uncertainty of the need to make-up days, employees are discouraged from scheduling non-refundable travel plans the week after the end of the regular school year.
- C. Emergency requests shall be directed to the building principal for immediate disposition. The written form must be completed and filed within three (3) days after the return from absence.
- D. Personal leave may be used before or after Board-recognized holidays when a leave form is submitted at least thirty (30) days prior to the requested date to the building principal, subject to the restrictions of (B) (2), (3), and (4). Subject to the limitation stated in B(3) above, personal leave may be used for the following reasons on the first five (5) and last ten (10) days of the school year by providing a written notice to the building principal including the reason for the absence:

- 1. College graduation or completion of military training ceremonies in the immediate family;
- 2. Moving a child into college;
- 3. Wedding of a child;
- 4. Other extenuating circumstances that affect the immediate family, as approved by the Superintendent.
- E. When a teacher is eligible for severance, the rollover of remaining personal days shall occur prior to calculating the severance payment amount when a teacher fulfills their 184-day contract.

4.03 Sabbatical Leave

The Board may grant sabbatical leave to a teacher in accordance with the provisions of Section 3319.131 of the Ohio Revised Code, rules and regulations as may be adopted by the Board, and in accordance with the following provisions:

- A. A member of the bargaining unit shall have had five (5) years of educational experience.
- B. A plan of professional improvement during the period the sabbatical leave is requested shall be filed with the Superintendent.
- C. If expressly authorized by the Board, part pay shall be granted which shall be the difference between the employee's regular salary and the cost of the substitute used during the sabbatical.
- D. No more than 5% of the bargaining unit shall be granted a sabbatical at one time.
- E. Additional sabbaticals shall be made available to members of the bargaining unit after completion of five (5) additional years teaching experience. No bargaining unit member shall be granted additional sabbaticals if there are other bargaining unit members who have filed a request for such leave but have not yet been granted the leave.
- F. Members of the bargaining unit returning from sabbatical shall be returned to the same assignment or equivalent position held prior to such leave.
- G. Members of the bargaining unit on such leave shall be allowed to retain all Board-paid group insurance benefits upon payment of the full premium by the teacher to the Treasurer.

4.04 Professional Meetings

- A. The Superintendent shall have the authority to grant teachers permission to attend conferences, seminars and other meetings.
- B. Reimbursable Expenses include:

1. Lodging

- a. Attendees will share rooms only upon the agreement of the attendees. In any case, all attendees shall have their own bed (not cots, pull-outs, etc.). When the District mandates attendance at a specified professional development, the District will reimburse 100% of the lodging costs. Otherwise, the maximum amount for lodging reimbursement is \$175.00 per night.
- b. Lodging will be reimbursed only if the difference in mileage from the teacher's home to the Professional Meeting exceeds the mileage from the teacher's home to school by 50 miles.
- Prior night's lodging will be reimbursed only if the Professional Meeting is scheduled to begin before 9AM.
 Same night lodging will be reimbursed only if the Professional Meeting is scheduled to end after 7PM.
- d. The Superintendent has the discretion to approve lodging reimbursement under extenuating circumstances/weather.
- 2. Meals (not included in registration costs)

Gratuity, sales tax, and alcohol are not reimbursable. There shall be up to a \$50.00 per diem stipend paid.

- Mileage School-owned transportation is the preferred means of travel and will be available to attendees upon request contingent upon vehicle availability. District administration encourages attendees to use school transportation or to carpool in order to save money, but attendees shall not be required to do so. Mileage will be reimbursed to each driver under the stipulations of Article 11.
- 4. Registration fees.
- 5. Legitimate original receipts for meals and lodging are required for reimbursement.

4.05 Association Leave

Upon the express written approval of the Superintendent, the President of the Association shall be permitted to grant up to a maximum of eight (8) days of Association Leave for members of the bargaining unit to attend to Association duties that cannot be performed at times other than normal school days. In the event of the President's incapacity, the President-Elect or anyone holding the legally constituted office of President will be extended this privilege. No more than two (2) bargaining unit members shall be permitted to utilize such leave on the same day.

4.06 Family and Medical Leave

- A. Upon the terms and conditions of federal law (FMLA), each bargaining unit member is entitled to up to 12 weeks of unpaid family leave in any 12-month period. A bargaining unit member is permitted to take this leave for the following reasons:
 - 1. The birth of a child or the placement of a child with the employee by way of adoption or foster care;
 - 2. Care for a newborn, adopted child or foster child within one year of the child's arrival;
 - 3. Care for a child, parent or spouse who has a serious health condition; and
 - 4. Employee's serious health condition prevents him/her from doing his/her job.
- B. For the purpose of administering Family and Medical Leave, each bargaining unit member will have an individual 12-month period. A bargaining unit member's FMLA "year" commences on the first day that that member uses FMLA leave. From that date and for the next consecutive 12 months, the employee will be eligible for 12 weeks of unpaid FMLA leave. The employee's next FMLA "year" commences when the employee next uses FMLA leave after the expiration of the prior FMLA "year."

C. Substitution of Paid Leave:

- A bargaining unit member must substitute any of his/her accrued paid vacation or personal leave for leave provided under either reason A.1. or A.2. for any part of the 12-week period of such family leave.
- 2. A bargaining unit member must substitute any of his/her accrued vacation leave, personal leave, or sick leave for leave provided

under either reason A.3. or A.4. for any part of the 12-week period of such family leave.

- 3. If the bargaining unit member has not accrued adequate paid leave to encompass the entire 12-week period of family leave taken under this section, the additional weeks of leave will be taken without compensation.
- 4. A bargaining unit member shall be eligible for partial or full Board payment of health insurance premiums, in accordance with amounts payable to the bargaining unit member under Article 10.03, while on FMLA leave. However, if the bargaining unit member does not return to work for at least thirty (30) days following FMLA leave (unless due to a continuation or recurrence of a serious health condition of the employee or a member of the employee's family), the Board of Education shall recover from the employee any sums paid for premiums for health insurance coverage during the period of the FMLA leave.
- D. The Board and AEA agree to abide by the provisions of the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act and any amendments. The paragraphs in this section shall apply as long as they are compliant with current legislation.

4.07 Assault Leave

Pursuant to ORC 3319.143, no part of absence from work due to a student or staff assault, injury, and/or complications resulting from such injury will be charged against the teacher's accumulated sick leave, provided the absence is the result of an injury incurred while involved in the performance of assigned school duties.

- A. Assault leave must be approved by the Superintendent.
- B. Assault leave is a maximum of ten (10) days per incident. Leave may be extended beyond ten (10) days only if medically necessary and approved by the Superintendent.
- C. If medical attention is required, a physician's certification must be provided to the District.

4.08 Use of Leave

Leave shall be used according to this Negotiated Agreement and the Ohio Revised Code.

ARTICLE V REDUCTION IN FORCE

5.01 Reduction in Force

- A. When by reason of decreased enrollment of pupils, return to work by regular teachers after leaves of absence, or by reason of suspension of schools or territorial changes affecting the district or due to the loss, reduction or inadequacy of funds, the Board decides that it will be necessary to reduce the number of teachers it may make a reasonable reduction pursuant to Section 3319.17 of the Ohio Revised Code. The non-renewal or suspension of any contract for the reasons as set forth in this section shall be pursuant to the provisions of this Article. Prior to such reduction, the Board shall notify the teaching staff of its intent to make such reduction no less than thirty (30) days prior to the Board taking action on such reduction.
- B. The effective date of layoff shall be the beginning of the affected bargaining unit member's school year.

5.02 Procedure for Reduction in Staff Shall be as Follows:

- A. A teaching field shall be defined as those grade levels/academic subjects which may be taught within a type of certificate or license issued by the Department of Education.
- B. Every reasonable effort will be made to reduce staff through normal attrition (retirement, reassignment, etc.) where possible. There shall be no involuntary transfers sixty (60) days prior to a reduction. In making such reductions, preference shall be given to teachers on continuing contracts. The Board shall not give preference to any teacher based on seniority, except when making a decision between teachers who have comparable evaluations within a teaching field. When two or more teachers have comparable evaluations, the least senior teacher shall be reduced.

When determining whether teachers are comparable, each teacher's most recent summative rating(s) from the past three years will be used. In the case of teachers with less than three years of experience, all accrued data will be used. ODE's evaluation rubric in effect at the time will be used.

- C. Seniority will be computed using Section 5.03.
- D. Once a teacher's contract has been suspended due to a RIF, and provided the teacher has certification/licensure in another academic area otherwise not affected by the RIF and has taught in the academic area no less than two semesters within the last five years; or, has received no less

than five quarter hours or three semester hours of college credit within the past two years relating directly to the academic area to be taught or agrees to complete the additional training required herein by June 1 of the following year, and provided the teacher has a current evaluation rating of Developing or better, the suspended teacher may displace another teacher in such area provided the suspended teacher has a better evaluation. In the case the suspended teacher has an equal evaluation, the suspended teacher must also have greater seniority in order to displace. Any teacher displaced with a rating of Developing or better may displace another teacher according to this section. If this provision is deemed to be invalid, or there is binding case law within this jurisdiction addressing rights set forth in this paragraph, the Board and Association agree to meet to modify this paragraph so that it is consistent with the law. The Board and the Association may mutually agree to postpone action until all appeals or times for appeals are exhausted. Article XVI shall prevail first over any action taken concerning this or any section of this Negotiated Contract becoming invalid or unlawful.

- E. Teachers whose contracts are suspended shall be notified in writing and granted the following:
 - 1. The right to review his/her seniority and certification records and challenge any relevant inaccuracy;
 - Placed on the district's substitute list;
 - 3. Notice of any vacancy or newly created position for which the teacher is certified;
 - 4. Group insurance programs provided to the members of the bargaining unit shall be available to teachers so suspended upon payment by such teacher to the Treasurer of the Board the total premium costs of such coverage.
- F. Teachers who are to be laid off, and whose contracts are also expiring, shall first be granted a contract, the length and type of which shall be the same as the teacher would otherwise be entitled to. Subsequent to the grant of such contract, the contract will be suspended. Nothing in this Article shall be interpreted as restricting the Board from exercising its rights under Article XV of this Contract.

G. Reinstatement Rights

 Teachers whose contracts were suspended because of a necessary reduction in staff shall be re-employed within their areas of certification/licensure on the basis if positions become vacant or are created within 24 months from the date of the teacher's last

9816911v9

- day of work. Notification to recall an employee shall be by certified mail, return receipt requested.
- 2. Teachers with a suspended continuing contract shall be given preference with regard to reinstatement. Seniority shall not be the basis for rehiring a teacher, except when making a decision between teachers who have comparable evaluations.
- 3. When determining whether teachers are comparable, each teacher's most recent summative rating(s) from the past three years will be used. In the case of teachers with less than three years of experience, all accrued data will be used. ODE's evaluation rubric in effect at the time will be used.
- 4. Teachers who have been placed on the RIF list have the obligation of notifying the Board if suitable employment is found elsewhere.
- 5. Any teacher on the RIF list who voluntarily resigns from the district forfeits all reinstatement rights.
- 6. All teachers on the RIF list are obligated to keep the Board informed of their current address and phone number.

5.03 Seniority

A. Seniority Defined

- 1. Seniority shall begin to accrue from the first day worked in a bargaining unit position.
- 2. Seniority shall accrue for all time an employee is on active pay status or is receiving worker's compensation benefits.
- 3. Time spent on inactive pay status (unpaid leave or layoff) shall not contribute to the accrual of seniority but shall not constitute a break in seniority.
- 4. Full-time employees shall accrue one (1) year of seniority for each year worked. Full-time, for purposes of seniority, shall mean working four (4) or more hours per day.
- 5. Part-time employees shall accrue seniority on a pro-rated basis. Part-time, for purposes of seniority, shall mean working less than four (4) hours per day.
- 6. No employee shall accrue more than one (1) year of seniority in any work year.

B. Equal Seniority

- A tie in seniority shall occur when two (2) or more employees have the same amount of seniority credit as determined by the seniority list.
- 2. Ties in seniority shall be broken by the following method to determine the most senior employee:
 - a. The employee with the first day worked; then
 - b. The employee with the earliest date of employment (date of hire); then
 - c. By lottery, with the most senior employee being the one whose name is drawn first, etc. This procedure shall be implemented in the presence of a designated Association representative.

C. Loss of Seniority

Seniority shall be lost when an employee retires or resigns; is employed in a non-bargaining unit position; is discharged; or otherwise leaves the employment of the Board. (Note adverse effect on principals who return to teaching).

ARTICLE VI EVALUATION

6.01 Evaluation of teachers shall be in accordance with R.C. 3319.11 and R.C. 3319.111. Teachers shall be evaluated using the evaluation instrument approved by the Teacher Evaluation Committee, the Ohio Department of Education, and the Board of Education. Employees may grieve the evaluation procedure but not the substance of the evaluation unless the substance is outside the teacher's professional contractual obligations, job description, their improvement plan, if applicable, and/or the Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric. Employees may attach a rebuttal to the Evaluation Instrument if the employee disagrees with the substance of the evaluation.

6.02 Teacher Evaluation

The Board and Association agree that the teacher evaluation procedure submitted to ODE, as amended from time to time by the Evaluation Committee, shall be considered a part of the Negotiated Agreement.

6.03 Teacher Evaluation Committee

- A. The Teacher Evaluation Committee shall be comprised of bargaining unit members chosen by the Association (with effort to represent each building in the District) and administrators to include the Superintendent and Building Administrators from the Elementary, Middle and High Schools. The number of Association members on the committee shall be equal to the number of Administrators, with no less than four (4) from each. The purpose of the evaluation committee shall be to amend such evaluation procedure and instrument as the need is determined by the Teacher Evaluation Committee, to be submitted to the Ohio Department of Education for approval.
- B. The administrator shall perform the evaluation of a bargaining unit member. To ease the administrator's caseload, another credentialed evaluator within the district may perform the evaluation. Evaluators from outside the District will not be allowable except in cases of emergency. A limit of one (1) emergency outside evaluator will be allowable at any time. The Teacher Evaluation Committee shall conduct an informal review of any outside evaluator. No bargaining unit member will evaluate another bargaining unit member.
- C. The Teacher Evaluation Committee shall meet at regular intervals, with a minimum of one meeting per semester, to review feedback from the evaluation procedure and recommend changes as necessary. Either the district representative members of the Committee or the Association representatives of the Committee may call additional meetings.

ARTICLE VII EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS

7.01 Length of Teacher Day

A. School Day

1. The length of the duty day for teachers shall not exceed seven hours and forty minutes (7:40) including an uninterrupted thirty (30) minute lunch period.

The teacher day is defined from 7:45 a.m. to 3:25 p.m. With respect to late arrivals and/or early dismissals, the teacher day shall be adjusted accordingly. Teachers must be on time in their room or duty location.

2. Provided however, the duty day for teachers may be adjusted by the Board to accommodate a work week of less than five days or to achieve a more efficient transportation schedule.

3. In implementing any adjustment under Section 7.01 A. (2), the total length of a duty week for teachers shall not exceed thirty-eight hours and twenty minutes (38:20).

B. Faculty Meetings

- Building faculty meetings called by building principals shall be attended by all teachers within the particular building and shall be considered as part of all teachers' regular duties. A teacher will not be required to attend the meetings if excused by the principals who called the meeting.
- 2. Such meeting shall begin no later than ten (10) minutes after student dismissal time and shall conclude within forty (40) minutes. Except in cases of urgent necessity, meetings shall be called at least two days prior to such meetings and an agenda emailed. The meeting shall not be limited to items on the agenda.

Meetings for DLT and BLT may be held, at the request of an administrator, under the same conditions, except that a maximum of one (1) DLT and one (1) BLT meeting can be held in any calendar month. Each meeting shall conclude in 60 minutes and bargaining unit members shall be paid thirty dollars (\$30.00) for attending each meeting. Teachers must attend the entire meeting.

 None of the foregoing restrictions on building meetings apply in case of emergency. Any building meeting called to discuss an emergency shall be limited solely to discussion of the emergency.

7.02 Vacancy and Transfer

- A. No matter the time of year, except in August, the Board shall provide every teacher a notice of all vacancies and newly created positions via the teachers' school electronic mail. There shall be no less than a five (5) working day posting period when the administration determines that a job opening exists, which it intends to fill, within the bargaining unit.
- B. Final determination in all transfer actions is the responsibility of the Superintendent.
- C. If a request for transfer is denied, the Superintendent will notify the employee via email of the reasons for denying the request. If the employee so requests, within seven (7) work days of the date of the written notice, a meeting between the Superintendent and said employee shall be held prior to final action. The District agrees to give notices on the date so noted in the written notice.

- Involuntary transfers may be made in accordance with Section F herein.
 In such cases, the Superintendent will notify the employee in writing of the reasons for the transfer. If the employee so requests, within seven (7) work days of the date of the written notice, a meeting between the Superintendent and said employee shall be held prior to final action.
- E. Any teacher presently under contract shall have the same assignment unless notified of a change, in writing, on or before July 10 of any school year, unless a reassignment becomes necessary due to a teacher leaving the employment of the Board.
- F. In acting on requests for voluntary or involuntary transfer, the following criteria shall be considered:
 - 1. A vacancy exists
 - 2. Instructional requirements
 - 3. Individual qualifications
 - 4. Staff availability and experience
 - 5. Special criteria established by the administration to achieve staff balance or better staff utilization
 - 6. Years of service in the system
- G. Nothing in this contract shall be interpreted to require the Board to fill any vacancy.
- 7.03 Individual Contracts and Contract Sequence
 - 7.031 The Board shall provide each member of the instructional staff individually written contracts in keeping with the provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and Board adopted policies. The provisions of such written contracts shall be enumerated in the subsections of this policy.
 - Any agreement to act as supervisor for extra-curricular activities for which additional compensation is to be paid shall be paid by supplemental contract.
 - 2. In consideration of the services rendered by the teacher, the Board agrees to pay said teacher a base annual salary as prescribed by the salary schedule and adopted Board Policy of the school district, according to degree and years' experience, whether existing or hereafter adopted. The initial compensation to be paid under a contract shall be according to the existing salary schedule and that amount shall appear on the contract.

- 3. A teacher contract year shall be one hundred eighty-four (184) days, which shall include four (4) days during which the pupils are not in attendance.
- 4. Limited contracts shall be issued by the Board to the professional staff in the following progression:
 - a. One year contract: upon initial employment;
 - b. One year contract: upon reemployment for the second contract:
 - c. One year contract: upon reemployment for the third contract;
 - d. Three year contract: upon reemployment for the fourth contract;
 - e. Five year contract: upon reemployment for the fifth contract and every contract thereafter; and
 - f. Notwithstanding provisions a. through e., any teacher eligible for a multi-year contract who has had either two or more ineffective ratings over the past three years or three or more ineffective ratings over the past five years may be offered a one year contract. If, at the end of the one year contract, the teacher has improved their rating better than ineffective, the teacher shall be offered the multi-year contract.
 - Notwithstanding provisions a. through f., any teacher g. currently employed under a multi-year contract shall receive, upon renewal, a contract of at least a number of years equal to his/her current contract unless the teacher is given a probationary contract pursuant to the following paragraph. Any teacher eligible for a multi-year limited contract may be given a one-year probationary contract provided that such teacher is notified on or before June 1st with reasons directed at the professional improvement of the teacher. Upon expiration of the probationary contract, such teacher shall be granted, if reemployed, a contract for that term set forth in subsections d. and e. above with the exception that an additional one-year probationary contract may be given where the reason is a lack of necessary nontemporary certification. The Board of Education may also grant a probationary limited contract to a teacher who is eligible for a continuing contract. In granting probationary limited contracts to teachers eligible for continuing contracts

the Board of Education and administration have to follow the following procedures: The Superintendent may recommend a probationary contract for a period of one (1) or two (2) years. The Board of Education may accept or reject that recommendation by a majority vote. If the recommendation for a probationary limited contract is rejected, the Board of Education may either grant a continuing contract or nonrenew the teacher. Any non-renewal shall take place in accordance with the provisions of Article 15 of this bargaining agreement. If a probationary limited contract is issued, a written statement of reasons directed at professional improvement shall be issued to the teacher on or before June 1st. Only one (1) such probationary contract may be issued. If the Board of Education decides to renew a teacher following the completion of his/her probationary contract, the teacher shall be given a continuing contract, if These provisions supersede the eligible under law. provisions of O.R.C. §3319.11 concerning the granting of "extended limited" or "probationary limited" contracts.

- 5. When a teacher becomes eligible for a continuing contract, during the term of a limited contract, he/she may notify the Superintendent in writing. Upon receipt of such written notification, the Superintendent shall meet with the teacher to check the records to determine the teacher's eligibility for a continuing contract. If eligible, the Board may, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, enter into a continuing contract with the teacher at its next regular Board meeting regardless of the teacher's current limited contract status.
- 6. A teacher who meets the requirements of ORC 3319.08 on or before April 1 and who is teaching under an expiring limited contract shall be eligible for a continuing contract as provided for under Ohio law. Notification of eligibility must be received by the Board on or prior to April 1 if the teacher is to be considered eligible under Section 6.

7.04 Personnel File

7.041 Any teacher in the bargaining unit shall have the opportunity, upon request during regular office hours, to review his/her personnel file. No document shall be removed from the file without the express written consent of the custodian of the file. Said custodian may require that such review be in the presence of such custodian or his/her designee. Copies of any documents may be secured from the teacher's personnel file upon payment of a fee by the teacher to cover the actual expense of such copy. If the employee disputes the accuracy, relevance, timeliness or completeness of information

on him/her maintained in said file, he/she may request in writing that such disputed material be removed from the file. Such requests shall specifically identify the material objected to and the basis for the dispute. If such request is denied, the teacher shall be permitted to attach a rebuttal statement to any information in his/her file.

- 7.042 The Superintendent shall remove any information he/she finds to be inaccurate. Anonymous letters shall not be placed in the teacher's personnel file. Only bargaining unit members, employees and/or agents of the Board acting exclusively within their official duties or in the exercise of their duties and responsibilities as employees or agents of the Board, or any other person authorized by law shall have access to personnel files. The Superintendent or designee shall inform any teacher of all persons who request access to the information in the teacher's file within two business days and supply copies to the teacher of any documents copied during such access.
- 7.043 Any material, excluding evaluations conducted in accordance with Article 6, which has been placed in a teacher's personnel file and has remained there for:
 - A. five (5) years or longer, in the case of a teacher on a limited contract; or
 - B. two (2) years or longer, in the case of a teacher on a continuing contract; shall be removed from the personnel file at the teacher's request, if the subject matter of such material relates in a derogatory manner to a teacher's professional behavior or action, and provided that the same or similar conduct which resulted in the material being placed in the personnel file has not been repeated during the five (5) or two (2) year period.
- 7.044 Bargaining unit members shall be informed and given a copy of any document added to his/her file by the next business day after it is added. This shall not include routine paperwork.

7.05 Community Complaint Procedure

The following procedure shall be utilized should members of the community or other non-school personnel wish to submit complaints about any teachers.

A. Except in those cases where the administrator receiving the complaint reasonably believes that it is inappropriate to do so, all parents registering a complaint regarding a teacher shall be directed to discuss the matter directly with the teacher. A teacher shall be informed of any complaint that the administrator believes has any validity directed at the teacher as soon as possible after the complaint has been lodged. No action against a teacher shall be taken by the administration and/or Board without the teacher being informed of the source(s) of the complaint.

- B. If requested by the complainant or the teacher, a meeting involving the teacher, and a representative of the teacher's choice, if requested by the teacher against whom the complaint has been directed, the principal and the complainant will be arranged as soon as practicable to resolve the problem.
- C. If the complaint has not been satisfactorily resolved at the building principal's level, the complaint may be submitted to the Superintendent, who shall attempt to resolve it informally with the teacher, the principal, and a bargaining unit representative of the teacher's choice.
- D. If the complaint has not been satisfactorily resolved at the Superintendent's level, the complaint may be submitted to the Board of Education with the following conditions:
 - 1. All such complaints shall be submitted in writing with a copy given to the teacher at least 48 hours prior to any Board action/meeting on the complaint.
 - 2. Any documents associated with the complaint placed in the teacher's file shall be placed in accordance with Article 7.04.
 - 3. No discussion of any complaint shall take place at any Board meeting unless the teacher who is the subject of the complaint has been notified of the time, date, and place of the proposed discussion at least 48 hours in advance.

7.06 Planning and Preparation Time

- A. Every teacher at the secondary schools shall be granted per day planning and preparation time equal to a class period.
- B. Every teacher at the elementary schools shall be guaranteed planning and preparation time equaling two hundred (200) minutes per week. Provided however, if any elementary art, elementary music, or physical education teacher is absent and no substitute is assigned, the regular classroom teacher shall provide such instruction and that teacher's allocated planning and preparation time for that day be reduced by that amount of time. When requested or required by the building principal, the teacher whose planning and preparation time is reduced shall be paid in accordance with Article 10.02.
- C. No teacher shall be required to attend student assemblies or other similar functions that are held during his/her planning and preparation times.
- D. Planning and preparation time shall not be interrupted by any meetings other than cooperative planning meetings. However, planning and

preparation time may be used for parent conferences and meetings with principals on an infrequent basis determined by necessity.

E. No planning period shall be less than 25 continuous minutes and there shall be at least one planning period per day.

7.07 Just Cause

No bargaining unit member shall be disciplined, reprimanded, reduced in compensation, suspended, or terminated without just cause.

7.08 Teacher Certification

Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Sections 3319.30 and 3319.36 any teacher who does not have on file with the district office a copy of his/her valid certificate/license to teach in his/her area of assignment will not be compensated until such valid certificate/license is on file with the district office unless that teacher falls under one of the exceptions enumerated in those statutes. It is the responsibility of each teacher in the district to ensure his/her valid certificate/license is on file with the district office at all times. If an employee fails to renew their license he/she would be subject to discipline but not limited to termination.

7.09 5 of 8 Provision

Care will be taken to maintain five (5) of the following eight (8) positions for every one thousand (1,000) students; art, music, and physical education teachers, counselors, librarians, nurses, social workers and visiting teachers.

7.10 Class Size

Care will be taken to assure an equitable distribution of students among classrooms within a class level or subject area.

ARTICLE VIII PAYROLL PRACTICES

8.01 Payroll Deductions

- A. Deductions of yearly dues and/or fees shall be authorized for payroll deduction to the Treasurer by the teacher for the following:
 - United Teaching Professional dues.
 - 2. Departments of the Ohio Education Association as found on their yearly enrollment form.

3. Annuities. (In order for a particular annuity to be deducted from employees' paychecks at least ten (10) employees must request payroll deduction for that annuity. Annuities for which payroll deductions were being made as of April 17, 1995 need not meet the ten (10) employee floor. However, if any grandfathered annuities cease receiving payroll deductions from employees of Adena Local Schools, they must meet the ten (10) employee minimum to resume payroll deduction status.)

In the event the Treasurer and/or Board are assessed any taxes, charges, penalties or interest as a result of deductions by an employee which exceed the Internal Revenue Code maximum limit, those amounts shall be reimbursed by the employee to the Treasurer or Board.

- Credit Union.
- 5. Fund for Children and Public Education (FCPE)
- B. Dues covered by Sections 1 and 2 above may be deducted by the Treasurer in twenty-four (24) equal installments if so desired. No other plan will be accepted. Dues so deducted shall be transmitted to the Association Treasurer within twenty (20) days after such deductions are made.
- C. Teachers may authorize dues deduction through the transmittal of forms from the Association to the District Treasurer, and shall do so by October 15 of any school year.
- D. The Association agrees to indemnify and save the Board harmless against any and all claims that may arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Board or its agents, on its behalf to implement this provision or in the withholding of membership dues including but not limited to, attorney fees and cost of defense.

8.02 Salary Payment

- 8.021 There shall be twenty-six (26) payroll periods each school year, to be divided as equally as possible. If the date of pay falls on a banking holiday, paychecks shall be direct deposited on the next preceding work day. The Board of Education will direct deposit paychecks for all bargaining unit members.
- 8.022 Notwithstanding section 8.021 a maximum of fifteen (15) teachers may elect to receive his/her escrowed summer pay in one lump sum. Any teacher electing such method of payment shall be required to send written notification to the Treasurer of the district no later than August 1 of any school year. This option shall only be available to teachers who have completed their duties for

the year. Teachers who elect this option shall be paid no later than the end of the first full pay period following their last day of service, either regular or extended, for the school year.

- 8.023 Any other payroll arrangements must be submitted in writing to and agreed to by the Treasurer two weeks prior to the first payroll period for the ensuing school year.
- 8.024 If a teacher earns additional credit hours during the year which will qualify him/her for a higher place on the salary schedule, the teacher shall notify the Superintendent. "Notification" shall be defined as written verification from the college/university, and/or a transcript that the teacher has earned additional credit hours. The teacher will be placed on the appropriate level of the salary schedule as of the first day of the school year if notification is submitted by October 2, and as of the first day of the second semester if notification is submitted by February 2.
- 8.025 The salary schedule shall be based upon the training and experience of teachers. Each teacher shall be fully credited with placement in the appropriate academic training level column in the salary schedule with years of service properly credited pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 3317.13. A teacher with a Bachelor's degree and no teaching experience shall enter the salary schedule at Bachelor's Step 0. The teacher may move to the Bachelor's +15 column once the teacher has earned 15 graduate semester hours (or the equivalent) in addition to the total hours contained on the teacher's transcript at the time of graduation.

8.03 Paycheck Errors

The Treasurer of the School District shall notify in writing any teacher whose salary paycheck(s) is in error as soon as possible after discovery.

If the paycheck(s) reflect underpayment to the teacher, the teacher shall be paid the total difference in the next subsequent paycheck. All subsequent paychecks shall be written for the correct amount.

If the paycheck(s) reflect overpayment to the teacher, the teacher may elect deductions over the same period of time that overpayment was received provided that such repayment installments shall not extend beyond the next succeeding July 1. The teacher shall notify the Treasurer in writing of the time schedule he/she requests for overpay deductions.

8.04 Fair Share Fee Provision

The parties agree that if Janus is subsequently overruled by the Supreme Court, then they shall put back in the Master Agreement Article VIII (8.04) that was in the 2017-2019 Master Agreement to the extent it is consistent with the new court decision and it shall be effective immediately.

ARTICLE IX SALARIES

9.01 Teachers' Salary Schedule

The base salary amounts listed below shall be based on the index stated hereafter.

July 1, 2022: \$38,942 (2%)

July 1, 2023: \$39,721 (2%)

July 1, 2024: Contract Reopener.

SALARY SCHEDULE INDEX

Experience	Bachelor's	Bachelor's	Master's	Master's
	Degree	+15	Degree	+15
0	1.000	1.038	1.095	1.133
	1.043	1.086	1.148	1.191
2	1.086	1.134	1.201	1.249
3	1.129	1.182	1.254	1.307
4	1.172	1.230	1.307	1.365
5	1.215	1.278	1.360	1.423
6	1.258	1.326	1.413	1.481
7	1.301	1.374	1.466	1.539
8	1.344	1.422	1.519	1.597
9	1.387	1.470	1.572	1.655
10	1.430	1.518	1.625	1.713
11	1.473	1.566	1.678	1.771
12	1.516	1.614	1.731	1.829
13	1.559	1.662	1.784	1.887
14 15 20	1.602 1.645	1.710 1.758 Step 15 + \$	1.837 1.890 \$500	1.945 2.003
25 30		Step 20 + \$ Step 25 + \$	S250	

At step 20, teachers will receive their step 15 salary and \$500. At step 25, teachers will receive their step 20 salary and an additional \$500. At step 30, teachers will receive their step 25 salary and an additional \$500. The years of teaching service do not all have to have been completed at Adena in order to count. Unpaid leaves of absence from the Adena Schools do not count towards

the time needed to total a year of service. Paid leaves of absence from the Adena Schools do count towards the time needed to total a year of service.

Conditions for BA +15 and MA +15: All semester hours beyond the Bachelor's or Master's column shall be course work in the area of licensure, or in an area in which the teacher wishes to become licensed and shall be semester hours earned subsequent to receipt of the Bachelor's or Master's degree. Other courses which would benefit the school district may be taken upon approval of the Superintendent. Any bargaining unit member in the 5-Year Training column as of June 30, 2019 who would be moved to the Bachelor's Degree column as a result of this change in column name and education requirements shall not be moved to the Bachelor's Degree column.

Board approval for academic stipend shall not be considered an automatic qualification for column advancement or salary schedule credit.

Newly hired teachers will receive a one-time \$5,000 incentive payment to be paid by the end of October of their first contract year through payroll. The payment is subject to all required withholdings. Upon acceptance of this payment, the employee is required to fulfill their first two years of employment at the District. Failure to fulfill this requirement shall result in the employee reimbursing the District for this payment at the full amount. If the employee is not re-employed at the end of their first year, they are exempt from reimbursing the incentive payment.

9.02 Extra Duty Salary Schedule

- A. A written supplemental contract shall be issued for duties which are in addition to the teacher's regular teaching duties and which are performed outside the normal contract day or prior to the start or subsequent to the end of the students' school year. However, teachers may supervise students between the end of the student day and before the end of the teacher duty day. Paperwork required by the Treasurer's office must be completed prior to being paid for a supplemental contract.
- B. Coaching contracts shall be considered non-renewed at the end of each school year without further action by the Board of Education. Multi-year contracts will be offered to academic advisors only. Bargaining unit members having completed two one (1)-year contracts in the same non-coaching supplemental position will be awarded a two (2)-year contract for that same position. Every contract after the initial two (2)-year contract for the same non-coaching supplemental position will be three (3) years in length.

Progression of contracts will be:

1 year contract
1 year contract

2 year contract3 year contract

Service will count only for years of service in the exact same supplemental position. Additional years of service may be counted for a similar position at the Superintendent's discretion. The coach or advisor will provide proof of prior service upon request of the Treasurer.

C. The base salary for all supplemental contracts shall be equal to the applicable BA-0 salary in Section 9.01.

SUPPLEMENTAL SALARY SCHEDULE

Years of Experience

	rears of Experience				
Categories	0-2	3-4	5-6		
Athletic Director**	.30	.40	.50		
Head Football Coach	.15	.155	.16		
Head Basketball Coach					
Assistant AD	.12	.125	.13		
Volleyball Coach	.095	.10	.105		
Baseball Coach					
Softball Coach					
Soccer Coach					
Track Coach	.095	.10	.105		
HS Asst. Football	.090	.095	.10		
HS Asst. Basketball					
HS Asst. Volleyball					
Assistant Baseball					
Assistant Softball					
Assistant Track	.090	.095	.10		
Asst. MS Football	.080	.085	.090		
Asst. MS Basketball					
Asst. MS Volleyball					
Asst. MS Soccer					
MS Baseball					
MS Softball					
Ticket Sales – HS	.080	.085	.090		
Golf Coach	.075	.080	.085		
Wrestling					
Cross Country					
Varsity Cheerleader Adv.	.075	.080	.085		
High School Yearbook	.065	.070	.075		
Asst. Band Director					
Asst. Cheerleader Adv.					
Play/Music Director					
MS Cheerleader Advisor					
Choir Director	.065	.070	.075		

^{**}Any teacher holding this supplemental may perform this supplemental or its related duties during the work day during a planning period when all other teaching responsibilities have been fulfilled, or any other time when there are no teacher responsibilities.

Categories	0-2	3-4	5-6
MS Wresting	.060	.065	.070
We wresting	.000	.000	.010
Marching Auxiliaries	.050	.055	.060
K-12 Lights & Sound Auditeria			
Jr. Class Advisor	.040	.045	.050
Sr. Class Advisor			
Quiz Team Advisor			
Key Club Advisor			
Summer Conditioning			
Summer conditioning for			
Football, Volleyball, Boys Basketball, and			
Girls Basketball			
Ticket Sales – MS		2.1-	
Power of Pen	.040	.045	.050
MS Newspaper	.035	.040	.045
HS Student Council			
MS Student Council			
National Honor Society Adv.	.030	.035	.040
Science Club			
Head Teacher High School			
MS Head Teacher			
Elementary Head Teacher			
MS National Honor Society			
Swim Coach			
Choir Accompanist	.030	.035	.040
High School Science Fair	.025	.030	.035
FCCLA Club Advisor			
MS Science Fair			
Boys Biddy Basketball			
Girls Biddy Basketball	.025	.030	.035
American History Fair	.020	.025	.030
Ross Co. Fair Committee*			
Asst. Play/Music Director (per show)			
Asst. Solo Ensemble			
Elementary Music	.020	.025	.030

Saturday and Evening School and Detentions - \$30.00/hour, staffed on a voluntary basis, compensation when students attend.

Home Tutoring - \$30.00/hour, staffed on a voluntary basis.

The supplemental salary for the Ross County Fair Committee is divided among the members (usually 2 or 3 people) of the committee.

Summer School and Summer Intervention will be paid \$30.00 per hour regardless of the program. Grants or any other special funds may be used for all or part of this hourly rate. One hour per day prep time shall be paid at this rate.

Teachers who teach a College Credit+, AP, or IB course shall be paid \$500 per teacher per course at the conclusion of each semester.

ARTICLE X FRINGE BENEFITS

10.01 Severance Pay

- 10.011 Severance pay shall be granted in an amount to be determined by multiplying the daily rate of the teacher's pay at retirement by one-fourth of accumulated but unused sick leave days with a maximum of fifty-five (55) days payable in one lump sum.
- 10.012 The amount to be paid an employee will be the computed daily rate of the employee at the time of retirement times the number of days of severance pay due the employee.
- 10.013 By receiving payment for this unused sick leave, an employee would forfeit all accrued and unused sick leave at the time of retirement. Should the employee elect to give up retirement and return to full-time employment, the employee would be credited with zero days of accrued sick leave. Substitute work would not be affected.
- 10.014 Such payment shall be made only once to any employee.
- 10.015 An employee must actually retire from either the Teacher or School Employees' Retirement System before being eligible for severance pay benefits. In order to be eligible for severance pay and to receive a severance payment the teacher must provide a copy of the first retirement check to the treasurer.
- 10.016 Written "Notice of Eligibility for Severance Pay" shall be given to each employee deemed eligible under Board Policy.
 - The Board agrees to offer access to deferred annuity plans for retiring employees to shelter severance payments.
- 10.017 If a teacher submits his/her letter of resignation for retirement purposes to the Board on or before January 31st of the school year in which he/she intends to retire, the Board shall pay an additional \$500 in severance pay to the employee upon his/her retirement at the end of that school year.
- 10.018 Notwithstanding Section 10.015, any employee who dies while under contract with the District shall be deemed eligible for severance pay. Severance pay shall be computed at the time of death as described in this Section and paid to the deceased employee's estate in coordination with the Executor of the estate. Any question that arises during the computation of severance pay due to the unforeseen nature of the event shall be resolved to the greatest benefit of the deceased while not setting a precedent for future occurrences.

10.02 Substitute Pay for Regular Teachers

The Board recognizes that upon occasion a certified staff member may be required to waive his/her planning/counseling period to assume the responsibility of teaching or supervising students of another teacher in lieu of a substitute teacher or monitor. A certificated staff member may also be required to take charge of a group of students in addition to his/her regular assignment in lieu of a substitute teacher or monitor; however, this last provision excludes LD classes and Reading Lab classes which contain ten (10) or fewer students.

Such service may be requested or required by the principal or his assistant after reasonable effort has been made to obtain a substitute. Such requested assistance shall be made on a rotating basis throughout the staff related to availability. Payment for such services requested or required shall be made to the certificated staff member at the rate of \$30.00 per hour covered, with anything less being pro-rated.

It shall be the responsibility of the certificated staff member to report such service for payment on the proper form to the building principal, who shall submit such forms to the Board offices.

A regular teacher supervising a student teacher should not be consistently required to assume the duties of substitution for an absent teacher.

10.03 Insurance

- A. Group Life Insurance Bargaining unit members who are employed over fifteen (15) hours per week shall be granted a Board-paid life insurance policy in the amount of \$30,000.00, effective on the date the first premium is submitted to the carrier, which shall be within thirty (30) days of the ratification of the contract.
- B. Dental Insurance The Board shall purchase dental insurance coverage which meets or exceeds the specifications below for members of the bargaining unit, now and hereinafter employed, and his or her eligible dependents. The Board will pay 100% of the premium for family coverage and 100% of the premium for single coverage.

SPECIFICATIONS

If a Covered Person incurs expenses for a service on the list of "Eligible Dental Expenses," such charges are covered to the extent that they:

- 1. Are Usual and Customary;
- Constitute necessary treatment; and
- 3. Are incurred while covered under this Plan.

The Plan will pay for such eligible expenses as shown below.

Reimbursement for eligible expenses will be made directly to the provider of the service, unless a receipt showing payment is submitted.

Date Expenses Are Incurred

An expense is incurred when the service is performed, except that it is deemed to be incurred:

- 1. When the impression is taken in the case of dentures, or fixed bridgework;
- 2. When preparation of the tooth is begun in the case of crown work;
- 3. When the pulp chamber is opened in the case of root canal therapy.

Pre-Determination of Benefits

When the total cost of eligible dental expenses is expected to exceed the Predetermination Limit as shown in the Schedule of Dental Benefits (Appendix E), the Dentist's treatment plan should be sent to the Contract Administrator before the first date of treatment. Based on the treatment plan, the Contract Administrator will estimate the amount of the benefit available if treatment is performed and inform the Dentist of the determination. The treatment plan should:

- 1. Show the dentist's proposed course of treatment;
- 2. Show the total charge for the treatment;
- 3. Include x-rays, study models and any other data requested by the Contract Administrator;
- 4. Show how long the treatment will take; and
- 5. Show the classification of malocclusion (if the treatment plan is for Orthodontic Treatment).

Pre-determination is not necessary when eligible dental expenses are incurred for emergency dental care or accidental dental injuries.

Pre-treatment review is not a guarantee of the benefits that will be payable. It tells the Covered Person and the Dentist, in advance, what is payable for the eligible dental services named in the treatment plan. But payment is conditioned on:

- 1. The work being done as proposed and while the Covered Person is covered under this Plan; and
- 2. The Deductible and payment limit provisions and all of the other terms of this Plan.

Alternative Treatment

In all cases in which there are optional treatments available which produce a professionally satisfactory result, only the least costly alternative will be considered eligible under this Plan.

Eligible Dental Expenses

The following is a complete list of dental procedures covered under this Dental Expense Benefit, any procedure not listed is excluded.

Class "A" Expenses (Preventive Services):

- 1. Routine oral examinations are limited to twice per calendar year.
- 2. Emergency exam
- 3. X-rays as follows:
 - a. Full mouth and panorex x-rays are limited to once in any three (3) calendar year period, unless special need is shown;
 - b. Bitewing x-rays are limited to twice per calendar year; and
 - c. Periapical x-rays
 - d. Intraoral and extraoral x-rays
- 4. Prophylaxis (cleaning, scaling, and polishing) is limited to twice per calendar year.
- 5. Topical application of fluoride for dependent children under age 19 is limited to twice per calendar year.
- 6. Sealants for dependent children under age 15
- 7. Emergency palliative treatment
- 8. Pulp vitality tests

Class "B" Expenses (Basic Services):

- 1. Space maintainers for dependent children under age 18
- 2. General anesthesia in connection with covered oral surgery only
- 3. Emergency palliative treatment
- 4. Endodontic treatment, including root canal therapy
- 5. Periodontic treatment, including periodontic prophylaxis
- 6. Fillings: amalgam, acrylic and synthetic
- 7. Extractions
- 8. Oral surgery Oral surgery is limited to removal of teeth, preparation of the mouth for dentures and removal of tooth-generated cysts of less than ½ inch.
- 9. Stainless steel crowns
- 10. Non-athletic mouth-guards

Class "C" Expenses (Major Services):

- 1. Crowns, gold fillings, inlays and onlays
- 2. Initial installation of, or addition to, full or partial dentures or fixed bridgework (Dentures and bridgework will be considered to be initially installed only if the dentures or bridgework do not replace existing dentures or bridgework.) Such denture or bridgework includes the replacement of any extracted teeth and must be completed within twelve (12) months of when work is started.
- 3. Replacement or alteration of full or partial denture or fixed bridgework, if more than five (5) years after the last installation. Such expenses must have occurred on or after the effective date of coverage, and must be completed within twelve (12) months.

Orthodontia: (For adults and dependents under age 19)

No Deductible

60% of Reasonable and Customary Charges

Life-time Maximum Benefit of \$1,000.00 per person, adults and/or children

Full Banded Orthodontic Treatment

Appliance for Tooth Guidance

Appliance for Control of Harmful Habits

Retention Appliances – not in connection with full-banded treatment

C. Comprehensive Major Medical Insurance

- 1. Eligibility: Bargaining unit members shall be eligible for the full Board contribution toward the below listed insurance only if they are regularly scheduled to work more than four (4) hours in the normal school day. Bargaining unit members regularly scheduled to work less than four (4) hours in the normal school day shall only be eligible for fifty percent (50%) of the Board's contribution including HSA contribution amounts required herein.
- 2. The Board shall purchase, through a consortium or carrier licensed in the State of Ohio, a comprehensive major medical policy, which shall be equal to the Hospitalization/Surgical/Major Medical listed in 10(C)(7). The Board shall pay 80% of the premium cost for single with the bargaining unit member paying 20% and family being 80% Board paid and 20% bargaining unit member paid coverage for all certificated employees requesting such coverage. The Board shall have the right to choose the carrier.
- 3. For the duration of this agreement, the comprehensive major medical policies and prescription drug plans shall be followed:
- 4. Spousal coordination of benefits

If an employee's spouse is eligible to participate in his/her employer's health insurance program and the employer pays 50% or more of the cost of the insurance premium, the spouse must enroll for primary coverage in his/her employer's insurance plan. The spouse will be able to maintain secondary coverage under the Board's insurance plan if covered as part of a family plan. This requirement does not apply to any spouse who is employed by the Board or is employed, and eligible for benefits, with another employer who is also a member of the same health insurance consortium as the Board.

An employee may elect to forego the spousal coordination of benefits by paying a monthly surcharge of \$100, which will be deducted through payroll deductions.

5. At any point, when a bargaining unit member is covered by the HDHP HSA plan, the district will fund the bargaining unit member's HSA account each year in the amount of \$3,000 in each calendar year for 2023 and 2024 (reopen for 2025) for a family policy and \$1,500 in each calendar year for 2023 and 2024 (reopen for 2025) for a single policy. The Treasurer will deposit fifty (50) percent of the contribution on or before January 15 and the other fifty (50) percent will be deposited on or before July 15 of each year.

If in the event the employee exhausts the January payment prior to the deposit of the board's July payment, the employee may request an acceleration of the board's July payment. After verification from the health insurance carrier, the Superintendent shall approve the accelerated payment. If the health insurance carrier is unable or unwilling to provide verification, the employee's request shall be granted.

In the event a bargaining unit member is hired or is separated from employment in the middle of a calendar year, the employer contribution to the HSA will be prorated to the time in which the bargaining unit member was employed by the Board of Education during the calendar year. However, in no event, will the prorated rule be applicable to any employer contribution after it has been deposited into the bargaining unit member's HSA. A bargaining unit member who completes their 184 day contract shall be eligible for the Board's July payment.

6. Insurance Committee

- a. An insurance committee will be formed with equal representation from the District and the Association, with no less than four members from each. The Association will select its own members. The Board will select its own members. The committee will meet at least once per semester. This committee shall operate separately from any Wellness Committee.
- b. In order to avoid the ACA "Excise Tax" the insurance committee may recommend changes to the insurance policy to be submitted for negotiations at the next contract negotiation.
- 7. The referenced policies shall include the following benefits:

Ross County School Employees Benefit Consortium

Carrier	Plan 7 (D) Medical Mutual of Ohio			
Plan Design	HDHP - HSA Plan			
Benefits	In-Network	Out-of-Network		
Annual Deductible	Deductibles	are Embedded		
Single	\$3,000	\$6,000		
Family	\$6,000	\$12,000		
Coinsurance	100%	60%		
Out-of-Pocket Maximum	ded&coins	ded&coins		
Single	\$3,000	\$12,000		
Family	\$6,000	\$24,000		
Lifetime Maximum	Unlimited	Unlimited		
Physician Office Visit				
Primary Care	Ded & Coins	Ded & Coins		
Specialist	Ded & Coins	Ded & Coins		
Preventative	100%	Ded & Coins		
Laboratory & X-Ray	Ded & Coins	Ded & Coins		
Hospital Services				
Inpatient Hospital Deductible	None	None		
Inpatient Hospital	Ded & Coins	Ded & Coins		
Outpatient Hospital	Ded & Coins	Ded & Coins		
Emergency Services				
Urgent Care	Ded & Coins	Ded & Coins		
Emergency Care - Emergency	Ded & Coins	Same as Network		
Copay Waived if Admitted	NA	NA NA		
Emergency Ambulance Services	Ded & Coins	Same as Network		
Prescription Drugs				
Deductible	See Medica	I Deductibles		
OOP Maximum	Included in Medical OOP			
Retail				
Tier 1	Ded then 100%	NA NA		
Tier 2	Ded then 100%	NA NA		
Tier 3	Ded then 100%	NA NA		
Tier 4	NA	NA NA		
Mail Order				
Tier 1	Ded then 100%	NA		
Tier 2	Ded then 100%	- NA		
Tier 3	Ded then 100%	NA NA		
Tier 4	NA	NA NA		

8. Employees may choose to waive any and all medical coverage from the Board. Employees selecting this option are first required to submit proof of other coverage. Employees selecting the option of waiving coverage will be paid the sum of \$1,000 for single coverage and \$3,000 for family coverage by the Board at the end of the contract year. Upon proof of loss of other coverage, employees who had previously waived coverage from the Board may apply to reenter the Board's insurance plan earlier than one calendar year from when they left the plan. Reentry into the Board's plan is subject to approval by the consortium or carrier.

Upon reentering the Board's plan the bargaining unit member relinquishes any claim to the option waiver in whole or in part.

Where two bargaining unit members are married to each other, they shall have the option to elect either one family plan or two single plans. If they elect a family plan, they shall have the option of applying the Board's contribution for two single plans to the cost of one family plan. When both spouses are employed by the District and neither elects insurance, one is eligible for this opt-out payment. However, when one spouse elects family coverage, the other spouse is not eligible for this opt-out payment.

9. Section 125 Plan. The Board of Education agrees to set up a Section 125 Plan in order to permit bargaining unit members to pay the employee's share of qualified insurance premiums on a pre-tax basis. In all respects, the plan will operate in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code; however, only the employee's share of insurance premiums can be paid with pre-tax dollars under this plan. An annual re-enrollment period will be conducted in October of each year. The purpose of the re-enrollment period would be to allow bargaining unit members to adjust the amount of their contribution to the Section 125 Plan. Participation in the Section 125 Plan will not reduce the employee's salary for STRS purposes.

ARTICLE XI BOARD PAID MILEAGE

11.01 The Board shall pay upon approval of the Superintendent, a mileage allowance for travel to and from required or approved meetings if the round trip mileage from the employee's home to the meeting and back exceeds the employee's normal round trip mileage from the employee's home to school and back. If eligible for such mileage reimbursement, the amount of such reimbursement will be equal to the difference between the round trip mileage from the employee's home to the meeting and back and the employee's normal round trip mileage to school and back. The exception would be if the mileage would occur on a day that is not a duty day. Such allowance to cover actual distances traveled to and

- from the meeting is paid only to those actually operating cars to and from the meetings.
- 11.02 Employees who use their personal vehicles for required travel within the district on official school business and for meetings pursuant to section 11.01 herein, approved in advance by the Superintendent, shall be reimbursed at the IRS rate.

ARTICLE XII ACADEMIC STIPEND

- 12.01 The Board agrees to provide a total of \$35,000 for the school year to be used by teachers to supplement the cost of graduate credit course work in the areas of teaching or school administration and CEU credit earned on non-work time. Distribution of funds shall be limited to the percentage of the total fund compared to the total tuition requests for each contract year per each request, with no reimbursement being more than 100% paid. Requests shall be submitted no later than the first day of school. Requests submitted after that date shall not be considered unless unused funds are available.
 - A. Courses must be approved in advance by the Superintendent.
 - B. Courses shall be in a field related to teaching or administration of schools.
 - C. Payments will be made by the last day of October, providing prior approval by the Superintendent was obtained, the teacher is in the employment of the Adena Local School District at that time, the course was completed with a grade of "B" or better, and the teacher submits all grades and proof of payment to the district office no later than October 2. If possible, teachers shall take graduate course work for a grade. If the course work cannot be taken for a grade, a "pass" shall qualify the course work for payment under the provision. In addition, the teacher shall be required to remain in the employment of the school district for the ensuing school year unless severance occurs through appropriate legal avenues. No exceptions to the requirements herein will be made. It is the responsibility of each teacher to comply with the terms herein in order to be eligible for the academic stipend.
 - D. All funds not expended in one year, subject to a maximum cap of \$10,000.00, shall be carried over and added to the dollar maximum for the following year.

ARTICLE XIII STRS PICK-UP

The salaries of bargaining unit members shall begin at the time they report for regular duty. The annual contract salary shall be divided into twenty-six (26) equal payments. In other words, all regular and full-time employees shall be paid on the basis of twelve months; however, any teacher, up to a limit of fifteen (15), may elect to receive his/her escrowed summer pay in one lump sum provided the requirements of Section 8.022 are

complied with. Any teacher electing such method of payment shall be required to send written notification to the Treasurer of the district no later than January 30th of any school year.

Deductions will include, in addition to those listed under Article VIII:

- 1. Retirement (as established by STRS)
- 2. Consistent with the provisions of Internal Revenue Service Rulings 77-462, 81-35 and 81-36, effective October 1, 1983, the Board shall pick up each bargaining unit member's mandatory contributions to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS) provided that no bargaining unit member's total salary is increased by such pick-up nor is the Board's total contribution to STRS increased thereby. The dollar amount to be "picked-up" by the Board:
 - a. shall equal the then-current percentage amount of the above-mentioned employee's mandatory STRS contributions;
 - b. shall be credited by STRS as employee contributions under authority of Ohio Attorney General Opinion 81-097;
 - c. shall be included in computing final average salary;
 - d. shall not be reported by the Board as subject to current federal and state income taxes;
 - e. shall be reported by the Board as subject to city income taxes;
 - f. shall not affect the calculation of the above-mentioned employee's daily rate of pay for any purpose whatsoever, including making salary adjustments because of absence, calculating severance pay, or in reporting the above-mentioned employee's authorized credit information to financial institutions.

Each above-mentioned employee will be responsible for compliance with Internal Revenue Service salary exclusion allowance regulations with respect to the "pick-up" in combination with other tax-deferred compensation plans.

If the foregoing "pick-up" provisions are nullified by subsequent Internal Revenue Service Rulings, Ohio Attorney General Opinions, or other governing regulations, the Board will be held harmless, and this Article of the Agreement shall be declared null and void.

The Treasurer shall prepare for each employee his withholding tax W-2 form. This will be mailed the latter part of January following the calendar year.

ARTICLE XIV BOARD POLICY HANDBOOK

One Board policy handbook shall be maintained in the Board office and shall be available and accessible to all bargaining unit employees. The Board shall provide the AEA

President with electronic notice of any and all additions, deletions, and amendments to Board policy pursuant to Article 2.07.

ARTICLE XV NON-RENEWAL OF CONTRACT

15.01 Clarification of Terms

- A. The term "teacher" refers to all personnel covered by this Agreement.
- B. Non-renewal of contract shall be defined as a failure by the Board to issue a new contract to a teacher when the time specified in the teacher's present contract expires and shall be pursuant to ORC 3319.11 and Section 15.02 or 15.03 of the Agreement herein below.
- 15.02 Non-renewal of a Limited Contract Teachers with at Least Three (3) Continuous Years of Teaching for the Adena Local Schools
 - A. If the Superintendent intends to recommend the non-renewal of a limited teaching contract, the teacher in question shall be given the reason(s) for such a recommendation. The teacher may be accompanied by a representative of his/her choice at the time the Superintendent submits the reason(s).
 - B. The Board may non-renew a teacher's contract for any of the following reasons:
 - 1. Performance unsatisfactory to the administration or Board as documented by written evaluation(s) and/or other relevant documentation in the teacher's personnel file; or
 - 2. Immorality, violations of reasonable rules and regulations of the Board or other inappropriate conduct. Prior to Board action, the teacher may request in writing a meeting with the Board in executive session. If both parties agree, the meeting may be held in open session. The teacher may bring up to two (2) representatives with him/her to this meeting. The Board may request that the Superintendent, Principal of the affected teacher, Treasurer, and/or its representative be present for any such executive session. The purpose of the session shall be for the teacher and/or his/her representative to explain to the Board of Education why the teacher believes his/her contract should not be non-renewed and to discuss the proposed non-renewal. If the Board votes to non-renew the teacher, the teacher shall receive written notice of the non-renewal on or before June 1.
 - C. If a teacher's difficulties are related to any areas specifically referred to on the formal evaluation form, the teacher shall be notified in writing by means of the formal conference provisions of the evaluation procedure.

The teacher will be given suggestions by the Principal to assist in correction of the professional difficulty, time to incorporate the recommended changes, and subsequent formal conference to reevaluate the teacher's progress. Failure on the part of the teacher to correct the situation will necessitate a recommendation of dismissal from the Principal to the Superintendent of Schools.

- D. This Section shall not apply to renewal or non-renewal of a teacher's contract unless (s)he has worked at least three continuous years for the Board as a teacher.
- E. Supplemental contracts are exempt from the provisions of the Article.
- F. Section 3319.11, Ohio Revised Code, as amended, shall not apply to non-renewals under this section.
- 15.03 Non-renewal of a Limited Contract Teachers with Less than Three (3) Continuous Years of Teaching for the Adena Local Schools.

Teachers who have less than three (3) continuous years of teaching for the Adena Local Schools shall be subject to non-renewal procedures as specified under 3319.11 of the Revised Code, as amended.

ARTICLE XVI GENERAL AGREEMENT PROVISIONS

Except as specifically set forth in Section 4117.10(A) of the Ohio Revised Code, this contract supersedes and prevails over all statutes of the State of Ohio and all policies, rules, and regulations of the Board and/or administration. However, should the State Employment Relations Board or any court of competent jurisdiction determine, after all appeals or times for appeal have been exhausted, that any provision herein is unlawful, such provision shall be null and void, but all other provisions of this contract shall remain in full force and effect. Within thirty (30) work days the parties shall meet to negotiate a replacement provision for any declared to be ratified and signed by each party. The impasse procedure set forth in Article 1, Section 1.03 shall prevail if the parties fail to reach an agreement within 60 days of the commencement of bargaining.

ARTICLE XVII SCHOOL CALENDAR

- 17.01 The staff shall be provided an opportunity to make suggestions in the development of a school calendar.
- 17.02 Length of Teacher Contract Year The length of the regular teacher's school year shall be 184 days, with days divided as follows:
 - A. The first day of school shall be for teachers only;
 - B. The day Columbus Day is observed by the Federal government shall be an unpaid day off work;

- C. One day in the school year between the first semester and second semester will be a paid work day for teachers, without students in attendance;
- D. The last day of school shall be a half-day teacher work day. The second half of this contract day will be considered fulfilled on graduation day. Teachers will be expected to attend and participate in the graduation ceremony unless a valid reason is submitted to and approved by the Superintendent. Every reasonable effort will be made to schedule graduation on a day no later than the last teacher work day, unless circumstances require alternate arrangements to satisfy attainment of required hours for attendance of students district-wide.
- E. One hundred eighty (180) days when students are in attendance. The equivalent of two (2) of the one hundred eighty (180) days shall be allotted for parent-teacher conferences.

17.03 Calamity Days

A calamity day shall be defined as an instructional day when the closing of school is deemed necessary as a result of disease, epidemic, hazardous weather conditions, law enforcement emergencies, inoperability of school buses or other equipment needed to operate the school system, damage to a school building or other property, or other temporary circumstance that renders the school facility unfit for instructional use. Teachers will not be required to report to work on days when the district has cancelled classes for students.

ARTICLE XVIII MANAGEMENT RIGHTS (BOARD OF EDUCATION RIGHTS)

The Board hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitations the right to manage the school system.

The exercise of the foregoing right, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this contract.

ARTICLE XIX PRINTING OF MASTER CONTRACT

The Board shall make an electronic copy of the Master Contract available to all employees. Additionally, there shall be one original printed signed copy of the Master Contract provided to each of the following: Association President, OEA Labor Relations Consultant, Superintendent and Board Attorney.

ARTICLE XX PARENT-TEACHER CONFERENCES

20.01 The district shall schedule the equivalent of two (2) work days for parent-teacher conferences during the duty day or evening each school year. These can be

scheduled during the duty day or evening. The one-half (1/2) days count toward two (2) required teaching duty days.

20.02 If parent-teacher conferences are scheduled in the evening, bargaining unit members will be off duty the equivalent amount of time during the school year as per the district's annual Master Calendar.

ARTICLE XXI POLICY ON DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

No employee of the Adena Local School District engaged in work or while in the work place shall unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess, or use any narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana, or any other controlled substance as defined in Federal and State law.

The workplace includes any school building, school property, school-owned vehicles, or school-approved vehicle used to transport students to and from school or school activities; any school employee in charge of students off school property during any school-sponsored or school-related activity, event, or function, such as a field trip or athletic event where students are under the jurisdiction of the Adena Local School District.

As a condition of employment, each employee shall notify his/her supervisor of his/her conviction of any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace as defined above, not later than ten (10) days after such conviction.

An employee who violates the terms of this policy shall enroll in, participate in and complete a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved by the Board of Education. If the employee fails to enroll in, participate in, and complete such program or if the employee has previously violated this policy, or if the violation of this policy results in criminal charges being filed against the employee, the employee shall be subject to disciplinary action under the Ohio Revised Code and the negotiated contract up to and including termination.

In compliance with Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1989. 54 C.F.R. 4946 (1989)

ARTICLE XXII LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (LPDC)

In accordance with Senate Bill 230, there shall be a Local Professional Development Committee (LPDC) established in the Adena School District in accordance with the following provisions:

22.01 The purpose of the committee shall be to oversee, review, and approve professional development plans of course work, continuing education units, or other equivalent activities for the renewal of professional certificates or license renewal of all certified employees of the District, and any other activity established by law for LPDCs.

- 22.02 The committee shall be composed of seven members: four (4) teachers, one (1) principal, and two (2) other administrators. Terms shall be for two (2) years each, except that initial selection of two (2) teachers and one (1) administrator shall be for three (3) year terms.
- 22.03 Teacher members shall be selected by the AEA.
- 22.04 Administrator members shall be selected by the Superintendent.
- 22.05 The LPDC shall meet on a regular basis, as needed, and shall adopt its own regulations for such meetings.
- 22.06 The LPDC shall be charged with the obligation to be operational for renewal of licenses effective September 1, 1998. The committee shall operate under the rules and regulations of Senate Bill 230, relevant adopted rules and regulations of the State Department of Education. The committee shall establish a procedure by which a teacher may appeal the decision of the LPDC.
- 22.07 If any LPDC member is unable to complete his or her term of office, the Superintendent shall appoint an administrative person to fill any administrative vacancies, and the Association shall select any bargaining unit member replacements for the remainder of the unexpired term.
- The Board shall provide the funds needed for the LPDC to function in an effective manner. Compensation and release time shall be provided to members of the LPDC to complete the necessary functions in compliance with the law. The amount shall be recommended by the LPDC no later than September 1, 1998, and shall be subject to approval by the Association and the Board. Compensation for the LPDC members shall be set at \$850 per year, payable in two equal installments in December and June. The chair shall receive \$1,000 paid according to the procedure of this section.
- 22.09 The LPDC shall adopt as part of its guidelines the language of state law regarding administrator renewals in that, upon specific request of the affected administrator to have a majority of administrators vote on his/her IPDP for certificate renewal, and that such majority shall be obtained by reducing the voting teacher members on the LPDC.

ARTICLE XXIII EMPLOYMENT OF RETIRED TEACHERS

23.01 Employment

Teacher retirement followed by employment with the Board of Education assumes that both the Board and teacher will benefit. The Board will gain through savings and reduced salary and benefits. The teacher will gain through receipt of salary and retirement benefits. In order to clarify certain areas of this relationship (employment of retired teachers) the following provisions shall apply.

23.02 Salary

Retired teachers employed by the Board shall be placed on the teachers' salary schedule at step "0" and advance in typical fashion from step to step progress only to step 10. No more than 5% of the certified staff being made up of rehired retired teachers, except that the 5% limitation shall not apply if after reasonable effort the Board can find no qualified person to fill the position.

23.03 Contract of Employment

Retired teachers who are employed by the Board shall receive one-year limited contracts of employment. Such contracts shall automatically terminate at the end of each school year without further action, notice or procedure by the School District. Continued employment from contract to contract will be solely at the discretion of the Board. A retired teacher employed by the Board shall be ineligible for a continuing contract of employment, regardless of years of service with the District.

23.04 Supplemental Contracts

Retired teachers who are employed by the Board shall be eligible for supplemental contracts.

23.05 Leaves of Absence

Retired teachers employed by the Board shall receive sick leave (including bonus) and personal leave in accordance with Article IV of this Agreement. Retired teachers employed by the Board shall not be eligible for sabbatical leave. Retired teachers employed by the Board are eligible for benefits of professional meetings, in-service meetings, association leave and family and medical leave as found in Article IV of this Agreement. In no event shall leave extend beyond the retiree's employment contract term.

23.06 Reduction in Force/Seniority

Retired teachers employed by the Board shall have zero seniority in the bargaining unit and shall not accumulate seniority for any purpose. Retired teachers employed by the Board shall have no right to displace or bump, nor any right of recall in the event of a reduction in force.

23.07 Evaluation Procedures

Retired teachers hired by the Board shall be evaluated by the same procedures set forth in the negotiated contract between the Association and the Board that is used to evaluate all teachers in the district.

23.08 Severance Pay

A retired teacher employed by the Board cannot receive severance pay from the District.

23.09 Insurance

Retired teachers employed by the Board must accept insurance benefits available through other sources before and instead of electing coverage through the Board of Education. If a retired teacher who is employed by the Board has no other insurance available, the retired teacher must enroll in the Board's plan.

23.10 Academic Stipend

Retired teachers employed by the Board are not eligible for academic stipend.

23.11 Waiver/Supersede Contrary Provisions

The parties agree that to the extent the provisions of this article conflict with or contradict master agreement language and/or state law, specifically including, but not necessarily limited to, Ohio Revised Code Sections 3317.13, 3317.14, 3319.07, 3319.08, 3319.09, 3319.11, 3319.111, 3319.15, 3319.16 and 3319.17, the terms of this article prevail and will be applied to retired teachers employed by the Board.

ARTICLE XXIV STUDENTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS

Bargaining unit members, with the exception of the school nurse, shall not perform any medical procedures for students.

ARTICLE XXV PROFESSIONAL SUPPORT

25.01 General Provisions

- A. There shall be a Resident Educator Program adopted by the Adena Education Association and the Adena Local School Board of Education.
- B. Any revisions in the program shall be based on the recommendations of the joint Association and Board committee, and subject to Department of Education guidelines.
- C. The parties shall work collaboratively to secure grants and other resources for the Resident Educator Program.

25.02 Resident Educator Program Development and Screening Committee

- A. A committee comprised of three (3) teachers appointed by the Association and at least one (1) administrator will meet to maintain the Resident Educator Program and will also act as a screening committee to select teachers who will act as Mentor teachers.
- B. The committee will also have the responsibility to develop criteria and evaluate applicants for the position of Lead Mentor.

- C. The selection criteria for selecting Mentors shall be in accordance with criteria established by the Ohio State Department of Education.
- D. All Mentor applicants shall have completed Mentor training, or other required training, and Orientation prior to mentoring/coaching.
- E. Participation as a Mentor teacher shall be a voluntary commitment for a one-year period. Mentor assignments shall be on a rotating basis so that all members may participate.
- F. A Mentor may resign in the case of an identified personal emergency that would require the Mentor's withdraw from the program or in the case of a Mentor/Resident Educator relationship that has been deemed, by mutual agreement of the Mentor and Resident Educator, to be unworkable.

25.03 Resident Educator Regulations

All Resident Educators in their first year in the district shall be required to participate in the Resident Educator Program, at the discretion of the Committee.

25.04 Responsibilities

- A. All Mentors shall meet with their Resident Educator on a regular basis. Mentors shall have a minimum of seven and one-half (7½) days, if necessary, to work individually with the Resident Educator in professional areas as designated in the Pathwise Program, or in other areas as agreed upon by the Mentor and the Resident Educator.
- B. Resident Educators shall have release time for consultation with Mentor teachers, in-service or programs deemed necessary by the Administration and/or Praxis III assessments
- C. If additional days are necessary for the Mentor or Resident Educator Programs, such days shall be approved by the Administration.
- D. Due to the importance of the Mentor/Resident Educator relationship, no Mentor will be assigned to more than one Entry Year Teacher.

25.05 Protections

- A. All interactions, written and/or verbal, shall be confidential between the Mentor and the Resident Educator.
- B. No Mentor shall participate in any formal or informal contractual evaluation.
- C. No Mentor shall be directed, required, or requested to make any recommendation regarding the employment of Resident Educator.

D. Other than a notation to the effect that a teacher has served as a Mentor teacher, the teacher's activities as a Mentor shall not be part of the teacher's evaluation.

25.06 Attendance at Training Sessions

- A. Teachers who apply for and are accepted and complete Mentor training shall be paid an academic stipend of \$30/hr or college credit (if available).
- B. Mentors shall be paid a stipend of \$800.00 upon completion of that year as a Mentor.
- C. Lead Mentors shall be paid a stipend of \$100.00 per each pair (mentor/resident educator) upon completion of that year as a Lead Mentor.
- D. Resident Educators shall receive \$375 upon completion of their first year as a Resident Educator.
- E. Program Development/Screening Committee members shall receive \$250.00 per year.
- F. Any monies received by the state will be used for the above-mentioned stipends with the Board paying only that amount that exceeds any state monies received.
- G. Teachers selected as Mentor teachers, at their option, may attend additional mentor/coaching activities as approved by the administration.
- H. Days/meetings scheduled beyond the requirements herein shall be optional for the Mentor and Resident Educator.

ARTICLE XXVI TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this Agreement shall begin July 1, 2022 and shall end June 30, 2025. The Association and District agree to reopen the contract for the 2024-2025 school year to negotiate Salary and Insurance and each side may bring up to two (2) additional clauses to the negotiations.

AGREED TO BY:

ADENA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION	ADENA ADMINISTRATION
President 8-23-2022	Superintendent Date 8-23-3522
President	

APPENDIX A

GRIEVANCE FORM

ADENA LOCAL SCHOOLS

NAME OF PERSON FILING GRIEVANCE	
SCHOOL	DATE
grievance is filed, a reference to the specifi	oncise statement of the facts upon which the c provision of the Master Agreement allegedly date of the alleged violation, and the relief ached as needed.
Level 1 – Response	
Level II – Response	
Level III – Response	

APPENDIX B

ADENA LOCAL SCHOOLS CERTIFICATION OF SICK LEAVE ABSENCE

Sick leave may be used in Full, Half-day or Quarter-day Increments (This certificate to be attached to payroll affected by the absence)

	L	Date
Attention: I was abse	ard of Education: ent from regular duty for a total of	, Treasurer ofdays/trips beginning
Please ind		k mark (✓) in one of the spaces provided below
4.012 P	rovisions of Sick Leave	
A.		personal illness of an employee, pregnancy- xposure to contagious disease which could be
B.		r absence due to illness, pregnancy-related death in the employee's immediate family.
	spouse, children, father, mothe	mily shall be defined as follows; grandparents, er, brother, sister, in-laws, or other persons who osition the teacher/employee, regardless of
Attending	Physician (if any)	
Address o	f Physician	Dates Attended
I understa will be cha that the si statements	nd that if all or any portion of my rged to the present balance of m gning and filing of this record s	salary is allowed for the above absence, same by accumulated sick leave. I further understand hall be a certification by me that the facts and correct. I agree that my use of sick leave shall
School		Signature of Employee
Certified b	y: Superintendent	Name of Employee (Please Print)
		Name of Substitute (If Known)

APPENDIX C ADENA LOCAL SCHOOLS SICK LEAVE TRANSFER FORM

Dear	
This letter is to certify that I,	an employee of
(Print N the Adena Local Schools, hereby contribute _ sick leave days toLocal Schools.	day(s) of my accrued and unused
I understand that this transfer of sick leave or rights or claims that I might have had to the agree that my current sick leave accumulation specified above.	number of days indicated above. Further, I
Thank you.	
Sincerely,	
Signature of Employee	Signature of the Witness
Employee Name – Printed	Witness Name – Printed
Employee Address	Witness Address
Date	 Date

APPENDIX D

ADENA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

2022-2023 TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE

Base

Rate \$38,942

Effective July 1, 2022

		BACHELOR'S		BACHELOR'S		MASTER'S		MASTER'S
EXP.	INDEX	DEGREE	INDEX	+15	INDEX	DEGREE	INDEX	+15
0	1.000	\$38,942	1.038	\$40,421	1.095	\$42,641	1.133	\$44,121
1	1.043	\$40,616	1.086	\$42,291	1.148	\$44,705	1.191	\$46,379
2	1.086	\$42,291	1.134	\$44,160	1.201	\$46,769	1.249	\$48,638
3	1.129	\$43,965	1.182	\$46,029	1.254	\$48,833	1.307	\$50,897
4	1.172	\$45,640	1.23	\$47,898	1.307	\$50,897	1.365	\$53,155
5	1.215	\$47,314	1.278	\$49,767	1.36	\$52,961	1.423	\$55,414
6	1.258	\$48,988	1.326	\$51,637	1.413	\$55,024	1.481	\$57,672
7	1.301	\$50,663	1.374	\$53,506	1.466	\$57,088	1.539	\$59,931
8	1.344	\$52,337	1.422	\$55,375	1.519	\$59,152	1.597	\$62,190
9	1.387	\$54,012	1.47	\$57,244	1.572	\$61,216	1.655	\$64,448
10	1.43	\$55,686	1.518	\$59,113	1.625	\$63,280	1.713	\$66,707
11	1.473	\$57,361	1.566	\$60,982	1.678	\$65,344	1.771	\$68,966
12	1.516	\$59,035	1.614	\$62,852	1.731	\$67,408	1.829	\$71,224
13	1.559	\$60,710	1.662	\$64,721	1.784	\$69,472	1.887	\$73,483
14	1.602	\$62,384	1.71	\$66,590	1.837	\$71,536	1.945	\$75,741
15	1.645	\$64,059	1.758	\$68,459	1.89	\$73,600	2.003	\$78,000
20	+\$500	\$64,559	+500	\$68,959	+500	\$74,100	+500	\$78,500
25	+\$250	\$64,809	+250	\$69,209	+250	\$74,350	+250	\$78,750
30	+\$250	\$65,059	+250	\$69,459	+250	\$74,600	+250	\$79,000

ADENA LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

2023-2024

TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE

Base

Rate

\$39,721

Effective July 1, 2023

		BACHELOR'S		BACHELOR'S		MASTER'S		MASTER'S
EXP.	INDEX	DEGREE	INDEX	+15	INDEX	DEGREE	INDEX	+15
0	1.000	\$39,721	1.038	\$41,230	1.095	\$43,494	1.133	\$45,004
1	1.043	\$41,429	1.086	\$43,137	1.148	\$45,600	1.191	\$47,308
2	1.086	\$43,137	1.134	\$45,044	1.201	\$47,705	1.249	\$49,612
3	1.129	\$44,845	1.182	\$46,950	1.254	\$49,810	1.307	\$51,915
4	1.172	\$46,553	1.23	\$48,857	1.307	\$51,915	1.365	\$54,219
5	1.215	\$48,261	1.278	\$50,763	1.36	\$54,021	1.423	\$56,523
6	1.258	\$49,969	1.326	\$52,670	1.413	\$56,126	1.481	\$58,827
7	1.301	\$51,677	1.374	\$54,577	1.466	\$58,231	1.539	\$61,131
8	1.344	\$53,385	1.422	\$56,483	1.519	\$60,336	1.597	\$63,434
9	1.387	\$55,093	1.47	\$58,390	1.572	\$62,441	1.655	\$65,738
10	1.43	\$56,801	1.518	\$60,296	1.625	\$64,547	1.713	\$68,042
11	1.473	\$58,509	1.566	\$62,203	1.678	\$66,652	1.771	\$70,346
12	1.516	\$60,217	1.614	\$64,110	1.731	\$68,757	1.829	\$72,650
13	1.559	\$61,925	1.662	\$66,016	1.784	\$70,862	1.887	\$74,954
14	1.602	\$63,633	1.71	\$67,923	1.837	\$72,967	1.945	\$77,257
15	1.645	\$65,341	1.758	\$69,830	1.89	\$75,073	2.003	\$79,561
20	+\$500	\$65,841	+500	\$70,330	+500	\$75,573	+500	\$80,061
25	+\$250	\$66,091	+250	\$70,580	+250	\$75,823	+250	\$80,311
30	+\$250	\$66,341	+250	\$70,830	+250	\$76,073	+250	\$80,561

APPENDIX E

Schedule of Dental Benefits

Annual Deductible

\$25.00 per person single \$50.00 per family

Benefit Percentage (after deductible)

Class "A"*
100% after deductible

Class "B"* 80%

Class "C"* 60%

*Refer to contract pages 38-39 for details of Classes "A," "B," and "C."

Annual maximum per year for classes "A," "B," and "C" is \$1,500.

Orthodontia

60%

Lifetime maximum for Orthodontia is \$1,000

Eligible dependents are spouse and/or unmarried children under age 19 or age 25 if full-time student attending an accredited school.

	Leave of Absence – FMLA 15, 16, 51
A	Leave of Absence – Personal 12, 15, 51
A	Leave of Absence – Sick Leave . 9, 10, 11, 15, 16, 36, 51, 57,
Agreement . 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 16, 20, 25, 40, 45, 46, 47, 51, 55	58
Arbitration	Leave of Absence – Unpaid
7,1011111111111111111111111111111111111	Local Professional Development Committee 49, 50
В	
В	M
Bargaining Unit 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, 11, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 32, 37, 40, 41, 43, 44, 45, 49, 50, 51, 52	Mentor and Entry Year Program 52, 53, 54
	N
С	Negotiations
	Negotiations
Compensation	P
Contracts – Continuing	1
Contracts – Limited	Payroll28, 29, 30, 57
Contracts – Non-renewal	Payroll Deduction
	Personnel File
Б	
E	R
Evaluation Procedure	Reduction in Force
	S
F	<u> </u>
·	Salary Schedules59
Faculty Meetings22	Severance Pay
Fair Share Fee30	STRS Pick-up
	Substitute Teacher
G	Supplemental23, 32, 33, 34, 35, 47, 51
Grievance Droodure 5, 6, 7, 8, 56	T
Grievance Procedure5, 6, 7, 8	Termination
	Transfer – Involuntary
I	Transfer – Voluntary
	11 ansier Voluntary22, 25
In-service	
	¥A7
Insurance – Dental	W
Insurance – Health40, 41	
,	Workday22, 23, 48
Insurance – Health40, 41	
Insurance – Health40, 41	Workday22, 23, 48

9816911v9 62

Leave of Absence – Association15, 51